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CHAIR TAVARES:

(Gavel.) Good afternoon, Members.

22

This is the Planning Committee's meeting of

23

August 28th, 2006.

24

being here.

25

Thank you very much for

We have our Vice-Chair, Mr. Danny Mateo,
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1

Members Michelle Anderson, Robert Carroll, our

2

Council Chair Riki Hokama, Ms. Jo Anne Johnson.

3

Dain Kane is excused.

4

and so is Mr. Pontanilla.

Michael Molina is here,
Thank you, Members.

Today, we have two items on our agenda,

5

6

PC-7, which is the Transfer of Development

7

Rights,

8

9

and PC-27, Country Town Zoning.
At this time, we will introduce -- I

will introduce the members of the Administration

10

who are here.

11

Director of the Department of Planning; John

12

Summers from the Long Range Division; our Deputy

13

Corporation Counsel, Mr. James Giroux.

14

Planning, we also have Mr. Joe Alueta.

15

We have Mr. Mike Foley, the

From

From the Council Services staff, we have

16

Kim Willenbrink, the Legislative Analyst for

17

this Committee; and Jo-Ann Sato, who is the

18

recording secretary for the Committee.

19
20

Okay.

Members, any questions before we

get into public testimony?

21

Okay.

Thank you.

If not, we will start

22

our public testimony.

23

public, you will have three minutes to give your

24

comments.

25

record, and if you represent any organization,

And, members of the

Please identify yourselves for the
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1

also state that.

2

testifying upon.

3

And what item you are

Mr. Joe Bertram,

III, lS the first

4

testifier.

The only other testifier signed up

5

at this point is Rory Frampton.
Also, Members, and people in the

6

7

Chamber, if you have cell phones or pagers, or

8

whistles or anything else, if you could put them

9

on the silent mode or turn them off so as we can

10

not have our proceedings interrupted

11

unnecessarily.

12

Mr. Bertram, the floor is yours.

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

13
14

MR. BERTRAM:

Yes, thank you.

Thank you, Chair

15

Tavares.

Aloha, Councilpersons.

16

Joe Bertram,

17

Association.

18

Committee as well as the Roads and Roundabouts

19

Committee.

III.

Hi, my name is

I am with the Kihei Community

I am a member of the Planning

20

We strongly support this Country

21

Business -- Country Town Business Zoning as well

22

as the Transfer of Development Rights, because

23

these are both tools for smart growth.

24

really are -- these are tools that other

25

communities use quite successfully in preventing
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1

sprawl and encouraging developers to build in

2

appropriate areas rather than areas that just

3

might happen to be available.

4

The only thing that we have, though, is

5

to -- we need this Business Country Town zoning

6

for Kihei.

7

in-fill our neighborhoods and make them actual

8

liveable neighborhoods, walkable neighborhoods.

9

And we are hamstrung by the single-use zoning

We are desperately, in trying to

10

that exists right now on the books in

11

redeveloping our commercial areas as actual

12

mixed-use, liveable towns and neighborhoods.

13

One -- and actually not only just the

14

commercial areas, but also the residential

15

areas.

16

before us that is a 28-lot expansion of the

17

Pi'ilani Villages area, which is mauka of

18

Pi'ilani Highway, and it's at the end of

19

Kawahine(?) Street, which is the main drag going

20

through there.

21

a park there as well, and it's -- there is no

22

stores in the -- in the whole area.

23

There is a development that's coming

And when you look at it, there's

Instead of a 28-lot addition to a

24

massive amount of all these subdivision homes,

25

we could actually start creating a mixed use
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1

neighborhood where you could have a neighborhood

2

store, and a neighborhood cafe, and maybe one or

3

two other neighborhood businesses owned by

4

people in the neighborhood, and then people

5

could walk to get a loaf of bread, to go get a

6

cup of coffee, and to have a place where they

7

can actually gather as neighbors that -- that is

8

outside of just the streets that don't even have

9

sidewalks on -- for the most part.

10

So, we wanted to make that suggestion to

11

the developer, but we

12

to -- to apply for?

13

commercial?

14

what do we ask them
Is it residential?

Is it

We need this type of zonlng, and we need

15

it for Kihei.

16

was just looking through it now.

17

chance to look beforehand.

18

important that we can apply this basically

19

anywhere on the island.

20

desperately need it in Kihei.

21

So take a good look at this.

I hadn't got a

But it's real

And we desperately,

If our -- our greenway master plan is

22

adopted, that's one half of it.

23

half -- thank you, Council Member Johnson.

24

25

I

The other

The other half is really having places
where people can go where they live, and they
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1

work, and they shop, not only in our commercial

2

areas but in our residential areas as well.

3

I urge you to look at taking off the country

4

town part, and putting in neighborhood.

5

Neighborhood commercial or neighborhood

6

mixed-use zoning ordinance.

7

neighborhoods and this is a crucial, crucial

8

aspect of it.

9

CHAIR TAVARES:

Any questions for Mr. Bertram?

COUNCILMEMBER FONTANILLA:

11

CHAIR TAVARES:

13

We need to make

Thank you.

10

12

And

I've got one.

Wait, Mr. Bertram, please.

Mr. Fontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER FONTANILLA:

14

Thank you,

Chair.

Joe, you say that the Kihei Community

15

Association Flanning Committee support something

16

like a neighborhood country town zoning?

17

MR. BERTRAM:

Yes, what we have done is in our

in

18

our Kihei 2000 amendment, we had broken off

19

Kihei into four neighborhoods.

20

the Suda neighborhood, the Azeka neighborhood,

21

the Kalama Fark neighborhood, and the Kamaole

22

neighborhood.

23

walkable in the sense that you have someplace

24

that you can walk to in order to get your loaf

25

of bread, hopefully put schools as well, or

And so there was

And so each one was to be
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1

something like that, even -- you know, we have

2

12 kindergartens in Kihei school.

3

actually need to break that off and have it in

4

the neighborhood.

So we

But we really are hamstrung right now

5
6

because as we are trying to create these

7

neighborhoods, we have to look at all the zoning

8

and how it's separated everything out.

9

So in order to ask developers,

like,

for

10

instance, Maui Lu, that looks to be the area

11

that we can actually create a neighborhood town

12

center for that neighborhood.

13

all zoned just resort,

14

ask them to be, you know, very creative in

15

actually creating a mixed-use, mixed-income

16

place.

17

Right now, it's

so we wouldn't be able to

Instead of all timeshares, we could

18

actually see that as a place where neighborhood

19

stores could be, where people could walk to.

20

They could actually live there as well.

21

again,

22

only say the auto,

23

connected by roads.

24
25

But,

it's facing land use laws that basically
and only single use, and only

So it is -- it is very hard to now
implement the plan that we are trying to
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2
3

4

9

to -- that we made back in 1998.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

So the

Association -- don't see density as a problem?
MR. BERTRAM:

No.

Actually, it has been a discussion

5

that

- that we have gone through, but we

6

recognize now that density is a good thing, if

7

it's done well.

8

by design can be very beautiful.

9

well, you have a quality product.

That's the whole idea.

Density

If it's done
Then it can

10

be something that's quite beautiful and then

11

actually feeds into our greenway system, and our

12

whole idea of transit.

13

have those numbers so the transit works, and

14

without density, you don't get that.

15

to have both.

16

You know, you have to

So we need

And if it's done well -- and there are

17

examples from around the country that show very

18

beautifully done mixed-use and mixed-income

19

types of development -- then it can be very,

20

very nice.

21

And with our greenway system, basically,

22

we have

23

minutes of anybody, wherever they happen to be

24

walking, wherever they happen to have a -- a

25

more higher density thing, they know that they

we have provided a park within five

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Ine.
Ofe: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

PC 8/28/06

10

1

can leave their building, and within a few

2

minutes, they will be in a park that will take

3

them anywhere in Kihei.

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

5

6

MR. BERTRAM:

You are welcome.

7

CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you.

8

Any further questions?

9

Ms. Anderson.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

Thank you, Madam Chair.

Thanks for being here, Joe.

12

MR. BERTRAM:

Sure.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

You know, you are talking

14

about mixed use, and you are using the term

15

neighborhood town center, which is great.

16

am wondering, have you read this Country Town

17

Zoning ordinance?

18

MR. BERTRAM:

I was just going through it now.

19

know that you have things like auditoriums,

20

and ...

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I mean,

But I

And I

I think, you know,

22

one Slze does not fit all, and -- and we are

23

addressing Country Town Zoning, and so -- and

24

that is primarily and always has been targeted

25

towards our small towns.

So we want to make
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1

sure that what we are doing is appropriate for

2

those small towns, and -- and I am not so sure

3

that we want to make it also appropriate for new

4

developments that want to develop town centers.
So I would just encourage you to look at

5

6

the ordinance and see where it does fit your

7

objectives and where it doesn't so that we make

8

sure we are not giving too broad a category of

9

permitted uses because we don't want -- we don't

10

want this ordinance to end up being a detriment

11

to our small towns, while it is an advantage to

12

new developments.

13

MR. BERTRAM:

Yes,

I do.

You see what I am saying?
And I think you are
In fact,

one of the things

14

absolutely right.

15

that we have been talking about,

16

have developed this

17

neighborhoods,

18

did was look at the green infrastructure, you

19

know,

lS,

as -- as we

this plan for the four
you know -- first thing we

in putting in these greenway master plan.
Now the next step is just exactly that;

20

is identifying these -- these neighborhood

21

lS

22

centers and coming up with specific plans, then,

23

that really address what people would like to

24

see in these neighborhood centers.

25

would involve the community in doing that and

And that
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1

then actually coming up with a plan that says

2

exactly that.

3

And if we have the legislation already,

4

basically, there that says that if it is

5

specified by the community, that these are

6

the -- these -- this is the

7

adopt this specific plan,

8

this -- you know,

9

community plan about this Open Space master

that they will

just as we did with

it was in the language of our

10

plan, but then we made it specific by --

11

basically lining out where the corridors were

12

and putting it all on a map.

13

It is the same process In doing this, is

14

that now we go back to the community and look at

15

these neighborhood centers and say what do you

16

want specifically in there?

17

the park?

18

You know, and what types of businesses would you

19

like to see?

20

Where do you want

Where do you want the town square?

And if it's already in here that -- that

21

if we make that plan, then we can implement it,

22

we already have the authority to implement it as

23

a result of this, then it will make it kind of

24

a -- I guess you might say like a concurrent

25

thing; that that -- then that gives us the
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1

impetus to be able to go back to the community

2

and say we want to

3

specific plans to implement this.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

MR. BERTRAM:

6

CHAIR TAVARES:

need to make these

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.
Thank you.

Any further questions?

7

If not, thank you, Mr. Bertram.

8

Rory Frampton is the last person signed

9

up.

If there's anyone else who wishes to offer

10

testimony, please come forward at this time.

11

Thank you.
Mr. Frampton.

12
13

MR. FRAMPTON:

Thank you.

Good afternoon, Members.

14

Rory Frampton here as a -- by profession, I am a

15

land use planning consultant, but I am here

16

speaking as an individual.

17

I am speaking on the Transfer of

18

Development Rights proposal.

19

the general concept of Transfer of Development

20

Rights.

21

across the country where certain areas that are

22

inappropriate for development have been set

23

aside,

24

properties were transferred to other areas.

25

I am in support of

It's been used in different places

and the rights to develop those

It's -- it can be a rather complicated
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1

process.

When we worked -- we were -- I was

2

participated in an Office of State Planning

3

Conference just a month or two ago where they

4

brought people in from the East Coast that had

5

actually implemented a TOR ordinance.

6

them 20 years to get their ordinance adopted.

7

Before that, they had built up a number of tools

8

in their arsenal,

9

flexible and more efficient site planning.

It took

if you will, to allow for more

10

And everyone at that conference that I

11

attended here on Maui, which included a lot of

12

planning staff and a lot of people across the

13

country, they all recommended that the County

14

should increase it's -- the number of tools

15

available to preserve and protect Important Ag

16

Lands, Open Space areas,

17

identified here in the Purpose section of

18

this bill.

19

everything that's
of

And what I would like to suggest as a

20

concrete example is to -- one particular tool In

21

my mind is to allow flexibility in site planning

22

In the agricultural district.

23

this by allowing flexibility in lot sizes.

24
25

And you could do

Right now in the ag district,

your

density and your lot sizes are determined based
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1

on the sliding scale, where you get so many

2

two-acre lots, and then you get so many lot

3

15-acre lots, and so many 40-acre lots, and so

4

on, and so on.
If you kept in the part that established

5

6

the density, by the sliding scale, so that

7

you -- you would get lots based on, you know, an

8

additional 15 or 40 acres, but allowed

9

flexibility in the lot sizes so that the lot

10

sizes didn't have to be 15 acres or didn't have

11

to be 40 acres, but you could use that

12

development right to do a two-acre lot, you

13

could essentially do clustering or transfer of

14

the development rights within a single parcel to

15

avoid certain areas that are

16

appropriate for Open Space, or might be

17

important to keep ag lands, contiguous ag lands

18

intact.

19

might be

And I -- I can say that I have worked on

20

a number of subdivisions in the past where we

21

were struggling to work around the sliding

22

scale, where we were trying to preserve large,

23

contiguous tracts of land, but because we were

24

required to do a number of 15-acre lots and a

25

number of 40-acre lots, we

we -- it became
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1

very complicated to try to achieve what I

2

thought were very important goals in terms of

3

the public purpose or public

4

And so I would -- my

public benefit.
to sum up my

5

testimony,

6

Committee look at other tools, and I can think

7

of at least that one, and I can submit a letter

8

that documents what I am talking about In a

9

little bit more concise manner.

10

CHAIR TAVARES:

11

MR. FRAMPTON:

I would strongly recommend that the

Okay.
But I -- I would beg the -- beg this

12

Council to implement some of these more easy

13

tools that allow or encourage landowners within

14

a single property to cluster and to do more

15

sensitive site planning.

16

And I -- I -- I encourage the ability to

17

try to transfer development rights between

18

property owner, but I realize that that's going

19

to take many, many years of hashing it out to --

20

before it would actually get implemented.

21
22

CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you.

submit that letter to us.

23

MR. FRAMPTON:

24

CHAIR TAVARES:

25

Okay.

And please do

Very interesting.

Okay.
Any questions for Mr. Frampton?

Ms. Johnson.
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

PC 8/28/06

17

1

MR. FRAMPTON:

Yes.

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, Rory.

With regard to

3

the Transfer of Development Rights and the

4

ability,

5

those lands and particularly with the State

6

legislation that has been enacted really having

7

us focus on identifying lands of significance

8

and importance to the State and also to the

9

County, with that in mind, do you believe that

10

with the TDR bill the lands that would be kept

11

in Open Space should be those lands that also

12

then have an easement filed on them?

I guess,

for the County to preserve

In order for you to achieve the density

13

14

that you would by clustering, do you believe

15

that an easement would be appropriate?

16
17

MR. FRAMPTON:

You would need some -- excuse me, yes.
You would need some form of control.

18

Basically,

if you are saying we are taking away

19

development rights from one piece because it's

20

very special and we want to preserve it for Open

21

Space, or because of a sensitive habitat, or

22

because it's prime ag land,

23

those development rights and transferring them

24

either within a property, as I am suggesting, or

25

to another property owner, then I think

and you are taking
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1

absolutely you are going to have to have some

2

form of permanent control over the property that

3

would prevent development in perpetuity.

4

think that's what you are asking.

5

I

And whether it be an easement or some

6

other requirement in the zoning, maybe there's

7

something that gets placed on it in terms of a

8

zoning designation or something.

9

concept doesn't work if those lands are still

10

But you

the

subject to future development.

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

12

MR. FRAMPTON:

And -- and ...

I might add, though,

the -- the big

13

thing -- it's easy when looking at TORs to find

14

all the areas that you want to preserve and

15

protect.

16

you got to have areas that are identifiable that

17

are suitable to have development more than

18

what's already entitled.

19

But in order for the program to work,

So you

it's not just taking them and

20

transferring them to areas that are already

21

zoned, but you got to add development rights to

22

the properties that are already entitled.

23

those are the receiving districts.

24
25

And

And that's where it gets real tricky is
to find unanimity, or to find -- to find -- to
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1

get the people to reach a consensus on where the

2

receiving districts are so that you can take and

3

put more units into those -- into those areas.

4

And that -- it's got to work both ways.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Well, and would you agree

6

also that because, when you cluster, the cost of

7

the infrastructure

8

somebody that for the most part is doing

9

clustering?

lS

substantially reduced to

Because if you have waterlines or

10

if you have shared infrastructure, and it's in a

11

much smaller area, doesn't that usually achieve

12

some type of savings?

13

MR. FRAMPTON:

Yeah, absolutely.

The idea of

14

clustering in general makes a lot of sense for

15

the reasons that you just cited.

16

repeat myself by saying you can do clustering

17

within a single parcel, or you can do it, you

18

know, on an island-wide basis.

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

20

CHAIR TAVARES:

21
22

Mr. Frampton?
MR. FRAMPTON:

25

Thank you, Rory.

Any other questions for

If not, thank you very much.

Thank you.

.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

23

24

Okay.

Okay.

And I'll just

CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay.

Is there anyone else who would

wish to testify at this point?

All right.
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Seeing no one comlng forward, Members,

1

2

without objection,

3

at this point.

I will close public testimony

4

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.

5

CHAIR TAVARES:

6

Okay.

Testimony is now closed.

Thank you.

7

8

ITEM NO.7:

TRANSFER OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS
(C.C.
03-275)

9
10

CHAIR TAVARES:

All right.

Members,

in our binders,

11

under PC-7, the development -- Transfer of

12

Development Rights, the purpose for scheduling

13

this item today was to receive a status report

14

from the Department of Planning regarding this

15

whole issue.

16

in earlier meetings, or in one of the earlier

17

meetings, that the Department was going to

18

attempt to have this assigned to a special or an

19

outside consultant to work on the -- this bill

20

in conjunction with the General Plan Technical

21

Studies.

22

Because as we,

So at this time,

I think, were told

I would like to turn it

23

over to Mr. Foley, and either you or one of your

24

staff members, if you could just provide us a --

25

an update.
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MR. FOLEY:

21
Thank you, Madam Chair.

I

would like to

2

direct the Council's attention to the memos that

3

I wrote dated April 27th and June 23rd.

4

In both of these memos,

I basically

5

stated that we are very much in support of

6

exploring the Transfer of Development Rights

7

program,

8

complicated and time-consuming process.

9

and we also recognize that it's a very

We have allocated money from this year's

10

budget to consultants that are working on the

11

research and analysis of such a program, and we

12

intend to have it presented as an implementing

13

tool for the General Plan and the -- and the

14

community plans.

15

And I

just wanted to mention also that I

16

have had conversations with Rory Frampton

17

regarding this issue and the ideas that he

18

expressed in his testimony today.

19

like to mention that one of the things we are

20

looking at is this -- the flexibility of

21

clustering in the Ag District that Rory

22

mentioned.

23

And I -- I'd

It -- there's a somewhat similar program

24

allowed in the County of Hawaii,

25

talking to the Planning Director there about how

and I have been
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22

it works.
And the -- the other thing I wanted to

2
3

say

4

putting together a program is -- is complicated,

5

and it's particularly difficult to find the

6

receiving areas for the density.

7

you didn't understand exactly what that meant,

8

you are basically taking density from one area,

9

called a sending district, and transferring it

10

lS

that Rory is also correct in saying that

And in case

to a different area called a receiving district.
The problem with finding the receiving

11

12

districts is that this is density above and

13

beyond the current zoning, and it's not always

14

welcomed by the neighborhood in which it's being

15

suggested.

16

that are already in the area where the

17

additional density is suggested say that they

18

have been relying on the current density

19

designation and they are not real crazy about

20

the idea of having it significantly altered.

21

In fact,

quite often, the people

Now, there are ways to try to mediate

22

that, and one of them is to send the density to

23

commercial areas.

24

that -- that we will be looking at.

25

it

lS

And that will be an area
But it

a fairly complicated process.
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In addition to explaining and selling

2

the project or the program to staff and -- and

3

politicians, it's also necessary to find an

4

excellent example for the first project, and to

5

convince property owners and banks to

6

to support such a project.

7

that typically takes a long period of time.

8

9

- to --

And as Rory said,

We will do everything we can to research
other programs and -- and see if we can learn

10

from other people's mistakes and try to put

11

together a program that we think is feasible

12

for -- for Maui County.

13

assure you that we are working on this.

14

been assigned to one of our consultants, and

15

they will be reporting back to us.

But -- and I want to
It has

16

And I have been working with the other

17

Planning Directors and the Land Use Commission

18

staff and the Office of Planning staff, and also

19

other representatives that are putting together

20

incentives for the

21

designations.

22

that Mrs. Johnson referred to cannot be

23

implemented until incentives are adopted by the

24

Legislature.

25

General Plan and

the Important Ag Land

The Important Ag Land legislation

So we are going ahead in our
in identifying Important Ag
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1

Land, but it will be a few years before the --

2

the State has a similar designation.
And -- and that group,

3

including the

4

Department of Agriculture and the Farm Bureau

5

and other ag representatives, are looking at

6

Transfer of Development Rights as one of the

7

incentives that might be available for the

8

implementation of the Important Ag Land

9

legislation.

10
11

12

And that's all I have, unless there are
questions.
CHAIR TAVARES:

Mr. Foley, do you have a -- estimated

13

timeline when this contract will be executed

14

with whatever kind of due date for a product?

15

MR. FOLEY:

The -- the assignment basically is -- is

16

already consummated, but the -- this program lS

17

part of a lot of other assignments that the

18

consultants have, and -- and we will be working

19

with them for the next six months, and we expect

20

the product to

21

be -- would be publicly reviewed next spring.

22

CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay.

it probably would be

Thank you.

23

Members, any questions?

24

Ms. Johnson.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

would

Yes, Mike, and I know that
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1

you have a lot on your plate, but one of the

2

things that I also,

3

discussions and some of the meetings that we

4

have had on the subject, the program that I

5

largely sent forward was one that was a

6

voluntary program.

7

individuals that have alerted me to some

8

programs which have both an involuntary

9

component and a voluntary component, and I was

I think during our private

But there have been other

10

curious as to whether or not model programs that

11

have the involuntary component are also going to

12

be one of the options that your consultants are

13

looking at with regard to at least having the

14

Council and the Planning Commission look at some

15

of these measures.

16
17

MR. FOLEY:

We will look at both voluntary and

involuntary.
I do have to caution you, though, that

18
19

the involuntary programs are significantly more

20

unusual and unique, and require a great deal of

21

political will.

22

that.

23

difficult to implement without cooperation from

24

the property owners.

25

I will -- I will leave it at

But it -- it -- it is significantly more

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And I know that one of the
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1

issues else that's always able to be raised is a

2

takings issue; and therefore, my thought would

3

be that if it is for a clear public purpose that

4

where this is identified -- because you don't

5

want to be using it willy-nilly.

6

identify,

7

corridor or something that really should be in

8

the public's domain,

9

say that it should require, perhaps,

You need to

let's say if it was a critical access

I would actually have to
a

10

supermajority of the Council to at least give

11

protection for those individuals that want to

12

see those changes made.
So that would just be my own personal

13
14

thought on the subject because I think that if

15

both programs are implemented, the one also that

16

would be the involuntary component, in my view,

17

because it's going to take a little bit more, as

18

you stated, political will,

19

withstand legal challenges, my thought would be

20

to create greater rewards through the voluntary

21

program,

22

involuntary approach.

and also probably

so that it's more often used than the

Because if you glve greater density,

23

I

24

think,

25

you know, there's cooperation on both sides of

in the voluntary,

it always appears that,
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So that would just be my own

1

the fence.

2

personal preference, to see those kinds of

3

components contained at least within the options

4

that were given.

5

MR. FOLEY:

I

just wanted to comment that there are

6

other tools that we will be looking at,

7

including conservation easements.

8

of the conservation easement is that the

9

property owner gets a reduced amount of money

10

below market, but they have a significant tax

11

advantage to doing that.

12

that's an alternative tool.

13

The advantage

And so that's

And of course, if it's land that's

14

needed for a public purpose, such as a roadway

15

or a park, the County also has the opportunity

16

to use eminent domain.

17

price that you pay is set by the court, and you

18

can't change your mind after the number comes

19

back too high.

20

But in that case, the

So there are other -- other

21

alternatives, Transfer of Development Rights,

22

purchase of development rights, conservation

23

easements, eminent domain and, you know, and

24

other things like -- that are not quite in the

25

same category, such as the clustering that
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1

that Rory talked about, that may not change the

2

overall number of units but may change the

3

location of the number of units.

4

One of the other complexities that we

5

are discovering in our discussions with the

6

other three counties is that the program is a

7

bit more complicated when it's used in

8

relationship to ag land.

9

that is that it lS our inclination to use the

And the reason for

10

current development right, which might be very

11

limited, because it's farm dwellings and

12

accessory farm dwellings, whereas the property

13

owner is more apt to be looking for a potential

14

density to transfer rather than the current

15

existing density.

16

disagreement that's quite large with respect to

17

how many units we are transferring.

18

And so we can have a

And the other counties have really

19

different attitudes and problems than we have

20

with respect to ag land and rural land, and so

21

it's very likely that the legislation relating

22

to this subject is not going to be one size for

23

all four counties.

24

menu that we choose from,

25

lot of different items on the menu,

I think it's going to be a
and there will be a
and Transfer
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1

of Development Rights will probably be one of

2

them, but we way operate it differently than,

3

say, Hawaii County or Kauai.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Madam Chair, one of the

5

one of the things, too, that I am really

6

concerned about is that if we don't move forward

7

with something in a relatively short period of

8

time, and particularly because the General Plan

9

Advisory Committee is doing their work, much of

10

the land that we are really talking about where

11

we would have the potential for using a Transfer

12

of Development Rights or purchase of development

13

rights may already be sold.

14

And what happens is it becomes very

15

difficult when you are dealing with multiple

16

owners to actually execute these kinds of

17

arrangements.

18

to look at an involuntary component where, as

19

opposed to eminent domain, if we had limited

20

financial resources,

21

sufficient equity or sufficient potential to

22

sell development rights, and it may even be in

23

rural areas, that I would say that's where my

24

concern is that if we don't move forward with

25

something now we may not have an opportunity to

So that's why I was more inclined

if you give the person
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do it later.

2

So I am looking at something other than

3

eminent domain,

4

cash strapped and particularly where we have to

5

do perhaps large volumes of land.

6

it piecemeal because by the time we even move

7

forward with corridors, or whether it is a

8

transit corridor, or moving a highway more

9

mauka,

10

and particularly where we are

We can't do

such as Honoapiilani Highway,

it may be

too late.
So that's why this is really important

11

12

to me.

13

and find other ways that we can try to enact

14

some type of legislation.

15

And my thought is

16

to Mr. Summers about this

17

ordinance with perhaps a sunset clause on a

18

pilot project basis, or a pilot basis,

19

we at least have an example of how it would work

20

and not try to do it Countywide, but really do

21

it regionally and maybe project specific.

22
23
24

25

And I would be more than happy to try

and I have spoken
to try the

so that

Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you.

Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Madam Chair.
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1

It's been a long time since we have had

2

this before us, and I'm just wondering if maybe

3

Mr. Foley can give us a brief practical example

4

of how this would be utilized.

5

make it simple, because this is a complicated

6

issue, and there's so many variables involved in

7

it.

8

But, you know,

And maybe to

one of the problems that

9

we face here in Maui County, Madam Chair, is

10

that so much of the land that is potentially

11

developable is owned by just two major

12

landowners.

13

development rights,

14

those development rights may be difficult.

15

So when you go to transfer
finding the land to receive

So let's take an example, and you know,

16

on the ground, practicality, of how,

17

might utilize this for land that they have that

18

may be ag zoned that they want to rezone for an

19

urban use, and say there's a corridor within

20

that parcel that the County wants to keep for

21

Open Space purposes or there's something of

22

significance there,

23

keep that out of development.

24
25

say, an A&B

for some reason we want to

So could you give me a practical example
of how they could accomplish that?
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And I am also interested in hearing the

1

2

difference between actual development rights

3

that they currently have per zoning as opposed

4

to potential development rights that they would

5

have if they got a Change in Zoning.

6

something that you could do, Mr. Foley?

7

MR. FOLEY:

Madam Chair,

Is that

I will -- I will take a --

8

take a shot at it, but -

9

your example.

let's -- let's take

Let's say that -

that a large

10

landowner Upcountry has a -- an area that we

11

designate or recognize as Important Ag Land that

12

we would really rather see remain in agriculture

13

rather than be urbanized.

14

We could -- with a Transfer of

15

Development Rights ordinance, we could transfer

16

the density from that property to,

17

of property in Wailea,

18

would accept more -- more development than

19

currently

20

you know, politically feasible and acceptable to

21

the area that -- where it was going.

22

lS

--

say, a piece

for instance, where we

is zoned,

if that were the

The dilemma that -- that you reach that
the one that both of us just mentioned, and

23

lS

24

that is that we would want to be able to

25

transfer only the current development right off
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

PC 8/28/06

33

1

that property, which would be very limited by

2

our sliding scale In the ag zone.

3

10 or 15 units on a large parcel; whereas, the

4

developer might want to just take their chances

5

that eventually some Council would change the

6

zoning and give them a lot more density right

7

there where they are.

It might be

So they have to be persuaded somehow

8

9

that they are not gOlng to get that zoning for a

10

long time, and -- and that it's worth it to them

11

to have the smaller number transferred to -- to

12

an urbanized area where we already have

13

infrastructure.
One way to do that would be to have that

14
15

agricultural area,

16

the urban growth boundary.

17

message to the landowner that it was going to be

18

a long time, probably ten years, before the

19

Council reconsidered on their own volition

20

whether or not the urban growth boundary should

21

be changed.

24
25

That would be a

Let me give you another more -- more --

22
23

for instance, not be within

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Excuse me, Mr. Foley.

let me follow up on what you just said.
MR. FOLEY:

Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So you -- you gave us a

2

scenario of a large landowner, say, having ag

3

land Upcountry that we consider prime, but yet

4

they want to build on it.

5

have exchanged with them the transfer -- we have

6

transferred their development rights to what,

7

some parcel in Wailea.

8

MR. FOLEY:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So we have got -- we

That they also own.
That they also own, and that

10

then the ag parcel gets an easement on it, a

11

conservation easement of some kind.

12

MR. FOLEY:

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

Right.
That would prohibit any kind

of ag subdivision in the future?

15

MR. FOLEY:

Right.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so when it goes down to

17

Wailea, are those development rights going on

18

top of property that's already zoned?

19

MR. FOLEY:

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

zoned parcel?

22
23
24
25

Yeah.
It would have to go to a

Well, you know, everything is zoned, but
I mean, you know what I mean, an urban or ...
MR. FOLEY:

Yeah,

for

for them to accept it, it

would probably have to be added on top of the
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1

density that they already have allowed on a

2

zoned parcel.

3

send it down to your parcel in Wailea, but you

4

still need to go through three years of

5

entitlement, they are not going to be very

6

interested.

7

Because if you just said we will

So, most likely, you are going to have

8

to add it on top of density they already have In

9

the receiving area, which might be fine with

10

them, but not with the property owners around

11

it.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13

MR. FOLEY:

Right.

The property owners around it, depending

14

on who they are and what development they have,

15

might be less than receptive.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And depending on what the

17

development is, ten units may not mean a lot to

18

them, or maybe it does if they have maxed it out

19

in their plans already.

20
21

MR. FOLEY:

Yeah,

it's obviously easier to transfer

10 or 20 units than it is hundreds

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

23

MR. FOLEY:

Right.

-- because the receiving area is probably

24

going to be more receptive.

25

accomplish as much either, and you go through a

But you don't
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1

tremendous bureaucratic experience for,

2

know, perhaps not a very large gain.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

you

It would be interesting to

4

know from these large landowners if they would

5

even be receptive to this because I do know

6

that

7

not work this way in other examples, but the

8

example that you brought up, Wailea doesn't want

9

density.

I mean,

since you brought this -- it may

Their whole thing is, you know,

yeah,

10

maximize the highest and best use, but still

11

don't, you know, make it too dense because it's

12

all about ...

13

MR. FOLEY:

You know, that -- that's exactly the

14

problem, is that finding the receiving areas is

15

very difficult.

16

Wailea or Makena or Kihei, you would have

17

opposition.

18

know.

19

density,

20

do you send it?

21

Well, that's going to exacerbate the traffic

22

situation.

23

If you tried to send it to

So that's the tricky part, you

And we might be wanting to transfer
for instance, out of Makena,

so where

Do you send it all to Kahului?

So, you know, this

this is more

24

complicated than it sounds.

25

only limited exposure to this in that other

The -- I have had
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1

state, and it's -- it's very complicated and --

2

and ripe for legal challenges, especially from

3

the neighbors who don't want the density added.

4

So, you know, we will --

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

MR. FOLEY:

And ...

-- we will look at it very carefully

7

because it is a -- it is a tool that, you know,

8

can provide some real advantages, but it has to

9

be done very carefully.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And then we also have the

11

added complication of should these transfer

12

rights comport with the community plan because

13

you still have to -- you still -- I mean,

14

don't know how these transfer of development

15

rights can override what our community plans

16

say.

17

MR. FOLEY:

18

MR. SUMMERS:

19
20

Go ahead.
Thank you, Madam Chair, Members of the

Planning Committee.
There are a lot of different alternative

21

programs,

22

less complicated.

23

I

some very complicated, some very much

It's certainly possible, through the

24

community planning process, to identify areas

25

for urban expansion and at the same time
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1

identify those areas as receiving areas, and

2

that may offer one of the easier approaches

3

because you don't have to deal with some of the

4

concerns that Director Foley previously stated.

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So I

just wanted to make it

6

clear, and -- and if you could back me up one

7

way or the other on this, that we can't be

8

transferring development rights that are in

9

in opposition to what our community plans say.

10

MR. FOLEY:

Correct.

Yeah.

And what John just added

11

is that at the time of the community plan

12

revisions, that's the time to identify these

13

receiving areas and identify them as areas that

14

can take more density.

15

And in general, you know,

In our work to

16

date,

17

infrastructure.

18

have water and sewer lines and already have fire

19

stations and elementary schools, because it's

20

becoming

21

that -- that providing all those urban serVlces

22

in rural areas is extremely expensive for the

23

County.

24
25

those are areas that have more adequate
They are the areas that already

you know,

it's exceedingly evident

I wanted to give you one other example
that is more simple but illustrates that this
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1

isn't easy.

And that has to do with a piece of

2

property that we are currently reviewing, a

3

hillside property that's ag, that they are

4

coming in for,

5

process from the State and the County.

6

tried to convince them to move this -- move the

7

density from one area that we wanted to be Open

8

Space along a highway up the hill to an area

9

where it would not be visible from the public,

you know, the whole entitlement
And we

10

and they weren't at all interested in doing this

11

because the -- the parcels up on the hill, they

12

want to be half acre and one acre in size

13

because they have bigger -- they have a big

14

view, being high on the hill, and they -- they

15

can, you know -- they have a significant

16

offshore market looking for view homes that are

17

very large.

18

So even though we tried to do it within
they -- they

19

the piece of property, and they

20

might have even gotten more units, they were

21

more interested In larger houses on larger lots.

22

And so,

it doesn't automatically work to

23

give them more units or smaller lots.

24

would have been significantly cheaper from an

25

infrastructure standpoint because the bottom

And this
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1

part of the land would have had nothing but Open

2

Space.

3

been clustered and concentrated and

4

significantly cheaper, but the money is in the

5

large houses.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And all the infrastructure would have

And so if they aren't

7

willing to use this tool -- say we had it

8

then the -- the next tool that the County could

9

use -- and I don't know,

10

is this designated Open

Space or not?

11

MR. FOLEY:

Not yet.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah.

So then we could then

13

in -- in

14

initiate it In a recommendation to the Planning

15

Commission that, you know, a certain strip of

16

land be set aside through eminent domain as Open

17

Space.

18

even the Planning Department could

I mean,

I am kind of tired of developers

19

telling us how we are developing the County.

20

You know, we need to step up to the plate and

21

say now, wait a minute, we are the decision

22

makers.

This is how we are developing the

23

County.

And you fit our plans and our community

24

plans.

25

Just one more thing, Madam Chair,
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Ine.
Ofe: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

PC 8/28/06

1

41

because I know you want to move on.
I

2

just want some clarification,

3

Mr. Foley, on the difference between -- well,

4

think we all understand if somebody has

5

development rights per their

6

It is the permitted uses and whatever.

7

what -- what about potential development rights?

8

How is that figured?

9

MR. FOLEY:

I

their zoning.
But

Well, that's the -- that's the real

10

dilemma because in -- In this County, most of

11

the time, the land being proposed for large

12

projects is currently zoned agriculture.

13

the development rights,

14

even call them development rights because the

15

development potential for that land is supposed

16

to be agriculture.

17

And

if you -- it's hard to

Now, they argue that,

yes,

it's

18

agriculture, but you allow a farm dwelling and

19

an accessory farm dwelling on each parcel, so --

20

and farm dwelling -- accessory farm dwelling is

21

limited to 1,000 square feet.

22

each of those parcels is

23

a development right of one and a half units.

24
25

So let's say that

- has,

in their mind,

And let's say that their parcel is large
enough that they could get only ten -- ten
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1

parcels, so their development right is only 15

2

units.

3

changing the zoning on that property to, you

4

know, quadruple, usually, the density from 15

5

units to 60.

6

transfer 60 units, and we are going to want to

7

transfer 15.

8

know -- that's where we are gOlng to have a long

9

discussion.

10

But they are looking at the potential of

So they are going to want to

That's the dilemma.

That's, you

And where that comes down is whether or

11

not they really believe they are going to get

12

their property designated or entitled by the

13

State and the County eventually, and how many

14

years that's going to take them to do.

15

Basically, it takes a minimum of three years

16

right now through the Land Use Commission and

17

the County.

18

And so they have to evaluate, you know,

19

what the -- whether -- what their chances are.

20

And if they don't think their chances are too

21

hot, then they might accept our transfer of 15

22

units.

23

they are going to hold out to try to transfer

24

60, or they are going to just go for the

25

entitlement and hope they win.

If they think they are real good, then
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But that's the -- that's the problem

2

with the ag land is that, you know, ag land is

3

supposed to be for agriculture, and

4

reality is that

5

big projects in this County come from

6

agriculturally zoned land.

7

value of that land is very significantly

8

changing by having an entitlement that

9

quadruples the development potential.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

but the

that, you know, most of the

Okay.

So, you know, the

Thank you.

I mean,

I

11

think that if -- if

12

land's zoned State and County ag, but maybe it's

13

got a designation as a Project District, then I

14

would say that they maybe have potential

15

development rights.

16

if the land,

But if it's designated ag,

if the ag

and it's

17

zoned ag,

18

potential to be, you know,

19

But that's only my opinion.

20

going to be a real issue in this whole thing,

21

I appreciate you bringing it up.

22
23
24
25

State and County,

I don't see any
negotiating away.
But I know that's
so

And if Mr. Summers had another
clarifying statement ...
MR. FOLEY:

We were just going to add that the other

tool in our basket is the urban growth boundary.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

MR. FOLEY:

Right.

If the area is inside the urban growth

3

boundary, they are going to be a lot more

4

confident about it being entitled eventually.

5

If it's out -- if it's outside the urban growth

6

boundary and if it's also designated on our maps

7

as Important Ag Land, then they are going to be

8

significantly less confident about getting the

9

entitlement changed.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

Yeah.

12

MR. FOLEY:

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah.
Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

14
15

About their potential.

CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah, thank you very much, and I

16

think this discussion was -- was good.

The

17

questions that came up were excellent, and you

18

can pass them on to the consultant when they are

19

working on it.

20

us, when the consultant is actually working on

21

it,

22

hope they will have,

23

this body of those meetings and those of us who

24

are particularly interested in it can either

25

meet with the consultant separately or attend

And I hope that you will tell

if they are having public meetings, which I
if you would please notify
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1

the public meetings because I know there are a

2

number of Members on the Council that have been

3

very, very interested in this Transfer of

4

Development Rights.

5

for that update.

So I thank you very much

6

Any other comments about this?

7

Mr. Molina.

8

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, Madam Chair, question

for the Department.
With regards to the process of the

10
11

facilitating of the transfer,

12

a real estate sale where you have an escrow

13

company involved, or will it be the County

14

coordinating this with some outside entity?

15

MR. FOLEY:

is this done like

It -- it includes both, you know.

It

16

it includes kind of being set up initially by

17

County staff in terms of the negotiation, but

18

then in order to actually accomplish it and to

19

create the conservation easement, you need, you

20

know, to have title companies and attorneys

21

involved.

22

non-profit land trust involved as well that's

23

because somebody is going to need to manage the

24

property that becomes Open Space.

25

And you may have a -- you may have a

And typically,

in the conservation
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1

easements that we have so far,

2

over to cattle operations, and they are -- they

3

are -- you know, they

4

basically, in range land.

5

to be monitored by someone.

6

County, then by a land trust or by maybe a

7

homeowners' association.

8

become the steward of that property because the

9

landowner, you know,

10
11

those are turned

- they continue,
But they

they need

If not by the

Somebody needs to

is not necessarily going to

be interested anymore.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

And another question,

12

with regards to the landowners in the sending

13

district, what restrictions do they have?

14

they be allowed to remodel on their property or

15

to raze any existing structures and rebuild?

16

MR. FOLEY:

Would

That's basically set up in the documents

17

when -- when the whole transaction is put

18

together.

19

it's an ag parcel,

20

the property should remain in agricultural use,

21

and it should be managed by so-and-so, and

22

that -- and that it can't -- and then the other

23

half, what can happen is agriculture.

24

cannot happen is construction of, you know,

25

dwellings, although it might allow,

And, you know,

if it's -- it's -- if

it would basically say that

What

for
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1

instance, of a farm dwelling for somebody to

2

take care of the agriculture.
But that needs -- that has to be all

3

4

specified in the documents that -- that send the

5

density from one parcel to another.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

And a final question,

7

just for the receiving districts, now, with the

8

bill, they will be allowed to pursue changes in

9

zoning and Community Plan Amendments as well, or

10
11

any type of General Plan designations?
MR. FOLEY:

Well, the cleanest way for it to happen

12

is that it's already been designated in the

13

community plan to be a receiving area, and it

14

already specifies how much more density it can

15

recelve.
It's still possible that it would need

16
17

to be

18

but that's easier than a Community Plan

19

Amendment, and faster.

20

still leaves open that -- that potential

21

quagmire of public hearings and public

22

opposition.

23

that zoning would need to be changed,

And -- but that

it

So you -- you have to have, you know,

24

the document has to have built into it an escape

25

clause so that the whole transaction can be
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1

cancelled if the Council, for instance, didn't

2

change the zoning, you know.

3

you can transfer but we're going to give you the

4

same zoning you had before, well, all bets are

5

off.

6

point.

7

10

The whole thing would fall apart at that

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

8
9

If you said yeah,

CHAIR TAVARES:

Mr. Mateo.

VICE-CHAIR MATEO:

Chairman, thank you very much.

Perhaps the Chairman can advise whether

11

12

or not the Maui Planning Commission actually

13

continued their discussion prior to the deferral

14

of the item.

15

recommendations as well?

16

documents, we have comments from both Lanai and

17

Maui -- Lanai and Molokai, but we -- I only read

18

up to a deferral of the item in the Maui

19

Planning Commission.

20
21
22

CHAIR TAVARES:

So are we in receipt of their
Because in our

I think they discussed it, but I

don't think the minutes are ready.
MR. FOLEY:

Yeah,

I think we did go to the Maui

23

Planning Commission first, but we don't have the

24

minutes yet.

25

VICE-CHAIR MATEO:

Okay.

So other than the minutes
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1

of February 24th,

2

minutes with the deferral.

3

MR. FOLEY:

Yeah.

'04 -- we have copies of those

It hasn't gone back to the

4

Planning Commission, the Maui Planning

5

Commission, since this February '04, but we will

6

be taking it back to them as part of the General

7

Plan process.

8

VICE-CHAIR MATEO:

9

Chairman.

10

CHAIR TAVARES:

11
12

Okay.

Thank you very much,

Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

13

Thank you, Chair.

So wouldn't it be much easier or

14

recommended that we wait until the General Plan

15

is approved?

16

MR. SUMMERS:

Well,

I think as part of the General

17

Plan, because the maps and the policy need to be

18

included in the General Plan, that that would be

19

the preferable approach.

20
21
22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So we are looking at about

two, three years down the line?
MR. SUMMERS:

Well, we are -- I mean, we are shooting

23

for spring of '07 in terms of having a document

24

ready for Planning Commission review.

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

And as far as the various
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1

community plans,

2

talked about the possibility of doing the

3

General Plan and the community plan at the same

4

time.

5

get some issues in regards to the community

6

plans, how do we work that?

7

I know Molokai and Lanai, we

But for Maui, because they are going to

MR. SUMMERS:

The best approach would be to have the

8

sending and receiving areas identified in the

9

island plan for Maui.

10
11

12
13
14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

You know, one thing we haven't

15

talked about, and I am trying to figure out how

16

we are going to do this, is how we are going to

17

assess property taxation on potential of a

18

transferred property development right because

19

we go with the underscoring zoning.

20

So have you received, Chair, comments

21

from Finance on how they would try and

22

administer the real property tax program with

23

this consideration possibly moving forward?

24
25

CHAIR TAVARES:

No, we haven't asked specifically for

their input unless they have already talked
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1

with -- or the Planning Department has talked

2

with the Real Property Tax and Finance

3

Department.

4
5
6

Maybe, Mr. Summers, you could address
that.
MR. SUMMERS:

And I think, as part of our effort

7

remember, these programs can be very, very

8

complicated, or you can have simple programs,

9

and it really depends,

10

in terms of real property

assessment, which program you choose.

11

When we get into that assessment of the

12

specific type of program,

13

definitely be working with Real Property Tax to

14

get their comments.

15

CHAIR TAVARES:

16

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

we will most

Okay.
The Director earlier, in a,

I

17

guess,

18

mentioned tax incentives,

19

what -- can you elaborate more so we can

20

understand what you mean by these tax incentives

21

for a property owner to be uncooperative to --

22

to voluntarily cooperative?

23
24
25

MR. FOLEY:

response to one of our Committee Members
so I am wondering

I am not sure exactly what I said, but

the tax incentives are ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Tax benefits,

let me say -- or
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tax benefits.
MR. FOLEY:

Oh,

oh, okay.

Yeah, the -- the tax

3

benefits can accrue to a property owner who

4

sells their property to a public agency or a

5

land trust for less than the market value.

6

get a tax -- not a -- not a County tax benefit,

7

but a Federal tax benefit, that represents the

8

difference between market and -- and what they

9

sold.

They

And -- and this is the advantage of a,

10
11

for instance, of a conservation easement done by

12

a land trust.

13

benefit I was referring to.

14

I was referring to is a Federal tax.

15

That -- that's the kind of tax

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

So it's the -- what

Okay.

And I know you

16

talked about community plan and zoning, and you

17

know,

18

on this proposal.

19

I have gone -- I have to refresh my mind

So that's under our control, but we do

20

still have large parcels -- well,

let me just

21

say we do have parcels that doesn't conform with

22

land use classification.

23

get a grip on -- on the reclassification portion

24

because I am not so clear that the Special Use

25

Permit is the right vehicle or venue to go

I am just trying to
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through.
MR. FOLEY:

Any thoughts, Mr. Director?

The -- yeah, the State land use

3

designation is one of the complications because

4

this is the only State that has State zoning.

5

And that's both a blessing and a curse depending

6

on, you know, the circumstance.

7

One of the things that we are -- the

8

four planning directors in the State are talking

9

to the State Land Use Commission about is the

10

possibility of setting up a process where the

11

counties could initiate groups of

12

reclassifications as the result of our General

13

Plan updates and our community plan updates.

14

This would be significantly more

15

expeditious, but it -- it hasn't been -- it

16

hasn't been done that way in the past.

17

we are exploring whether or not it is a good

18

idea, whether or not we even want to propose it.

19

And if we do, does it require new State

20

legislation, and how long is that going to take.

21

And so

But that's part of the conversation, we

22

are -- we are having.

We -- the four planning

23

directors and the State Land Use Commission and

24

the State Office of Planning have been meeting

25

every couple of weeks on the issue of Important
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1

Ag Land and the rural dilemma and trying to come

2

up with some recommendations also with respect

3

to incentives to protect Important Ag Land.

4

the CDR is part of that whole discussion.

5

And

And what we are aiming for is trying to

6

figure out whether or not to sponsor legislation

7

next year, not only for the incentive package,

8

but also some procedural changes, such as with

9

the State Land Use Commission, but we aren't

10
11

we aren't there yet.
And the -- the main problem is that, as

12

remarkable as it might seem, the four counties

13

have very different problems with respect to

14

agriculture and with respect to rural land.

15

illustration is that the County of Hawaii has

16

tens of thousands of very small paper lot, on

17

volcanic land, that they didn't think would be

18

subdivided or developed, but they are now being

19

developed with inadequate services of all kinds.

20

And they also have thousands of acres of

21

agricultural land that

22

those are two problems we don't have.

23

and the problems are -

24

different on Kauai and on Oahu.

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

lS

actually lava.
And

are also vastly

Right.
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So we are having -- we are struggling

2

with trying to come up with some tools that we

3

can all choose from because it doesn't appear

4

that we are going to have one process that all

5

four counties are satisfied with.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

You know,

last year, the

7

Legislature struggled with the Hokuleia issue,

8

which is agricultural land, and the way the Big

9

Island chose to approach processing and

10

developing their agricultural properties.

11

Maybe you can tell us.

I thought part

12

of the legislative decision was that they would

13

move forward working with the County Planning

14

Departments and I guess providing funding for

15

each department to make an assessment and to

16

report back.

17

Is this the report that you are talking

18

about, that you are -- is going to be ready for

19

January '07, that you will be giving your

20

findings of Maui's ag lands to the Legislature?

21

MR. FOLEY:

Well,

it

it is part of the -- yeah,

22

was part of the legislation that we worked

23

together to try to come up with some

24

implementing tools.

25

money, which was spent on consultants.

And they did allocate some

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

PC 8/28/06

1

56
And we -- whether or not we have

2

anything available by January is really

3

problematic at this point because,

4

are -- we are finding more problems than

5

solutions.

6

are working on.

7

frankly, we

But that is -- yeah, that is what we

It's

it's -- it's important ag land,

8

it's -- what do we classify the land that's

9

agriculture but not "Important," and do we use

10
11

the rural district for that?
And of course, all four counties have

12

really different attitudes about the rural

13

district.

14

some of us, you know -- some people think rural

15

is a transition between urban and agriculture,

16

and others think rural is kind of wasteland that

17

isn't good enough for agriculture.

18

Oahu doesn't have it at all.

And

So -- and then the incentives kick in,

19

and we have the Farm Bureau and the agricultural

20

landowners that are in the mix trying to come up

21

with what incentives would be necessary in order

22

for them to designate their land voluntarily as

23

important Ag Land.

24
25

So it's very complicated but we are
spending a lot of time on it, and it's
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1

particularly important for us because it is a

2

key element of the General Plan Update.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Right.

So is the -- are you

4

using consultants for that?

5

trying to tie it in with the General Plan work

6

that your consultants are doing,

7

not all of this will be, timing-wise,

8

compatible,

9

benefit of all this work that's being done and

running parallel,

Because I am just

and whether or

so that we get the

10

the information so we can make the best possible

11

decisions from the Advisory Committee level, to

12

the commissions, and finally to the Council.

13

MR. F0LEY:

Yeah,

I am glad you asked that because in

14

this County,

15

in our case, we will benefit from the

16

consultant's report.

17

very shortly.

18

have already updated their General Plan a year

19

or two ago,

20

Island.

21

doing neighborhood plans now.

22

it's working out very well.

In--

It will be available to us

Whereas,

in Kauai County, they

and the same thing with the Big

And the Big Island and Oahu are both

And so the timing is -- is best for us,

23

better for us than for the other three counties.

24

And I think we will benefit substantially from

25

the consultant's effort.
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The consultants were -- were retained by

1

2

the State because this is a Statewide lssue,

3

and -- and what we didn't know at the beginning

4

was that the four counties have really different

5

situations and it -- it isn't nearly as

6

homogenous as we thought it would be.

7

would have been very convenient.

8

will benefit.

9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

That

But -- but we

Still looking at Spring '07 to

10

get all of this data compiled and presented to

11

the appropriate advisory groups or the planning

12

committees?

13

14

MR. SUMMERS:

That's -- that's correct.

It will be

part of that package.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

16

CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Thank you.

17

Any further questions at this point?

18

Mr. Pontanilla.

19

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

20

You know, we

Thank you.
we are looking at some

21

recommendations by each of the Planning

22

Commissions, Molokai, Lanai.

23

stay the way it is.

24

Question on

25

Molokai want to

Lanai says let's do a test.
. can any land owner

transfer his or her development rights from one
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island to the other?
MR. FOLEY:

Not today.

We don't have any program in

3

place right now where that could occur.

4

be possible with -- with a Transfer of

5

Development Rights ordinance.

It may

It's easiest to transfer it within the

6
7

same ownership but to different locations.

It's

8

a little more difficult to transfer it from one

9

owner to another.
And -- but transferring it from one

10
11

island to the other would just mean that it's

12

from one Community Plan to the other, and that's

13

probably going to happen anyway.

14

that may be possible, but it isn't now.

15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you.

Anything else, Members?

18
19

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

16
17

So I think

If not, with no

objection, we will defer this item.

20

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.

21

CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay.

Thank you, Members.

22
23

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

24

25

CHAIR TAVARES:

We are gOlng to start on No. 27, and
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1

I think it would be appropriate for us to call a

2

short break right now.

3

five minutes to 3:00 and start on the Business

4

Country Town.

5

recess.

Thank you.

RECESS:

2:45 p.m.

7

RECONVENE:

3: 02 p.m.

8

CHAIR TAVARES:

(Gavel.)

There we go.

little delay with the filming part.

We have a
Okay.

Members, thank you very much for that

10
11

This meeting is in

(Gavel.)

6

9

So we will come back at

short break.

12
13

ITEM NO. 27:

COUNTRY TOWN ZONING

(C.C.

04-12)

14
15

CHAIR TAVARES:

And we are gOlng to be now getting

16

into the Country Town Zoning, PC No. 27.

I call

17

your attention, Members, to the last document In

18

your binder, which is the revised-to-date

19

revisions on the ordinance.

20

I would like to do before we get into too much

21

discussion is have the Finance Department and

22

the Real Property Tax representative come

23

forward because the question was raised at the

24

last meeting regarding how assessments are gOlng

25

to be done in a Business Country Town designated

And actually, what
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1

area,

specifically related to No. 22 on page 2,

2

which is combination of dwelling units with

3

other permitted principal uses in the same

4

building, of course except on Molokai, and we

5

we got

6

here.

oh, the written response isn't in
Did I miss it?

7
8
9

Do you folks have a written response
from the Tax ...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO:

10

CHAIR TAVARES:

11

VICE-CHAIR MATEO:

12
13

CHAIR TAVARES:

18

It was from the Department of

Oh, wait, August 14.

Okay.

I have it.

backwards, here.

I am sorry.

It's

My book was backwards.

So, Mr. Young or your representative

16
17

Oh, okay.

Finance.

14
15

August 14th.

is that Gary?
MR. YOUNG:

No.

This is Mr. Young?

Okay.

Good afternoon, Madam Chair, and Council

19

Members.

20

also have Scott Teruya assisting on any of the

21

technical questions.

22

Property Tax Administrator for Real Property Tax

23

Division.

24
25

Kalbert Young, Director of Finance.

I

Scott is the acting Real

I will be referring to a communication
from the Department of Finance dated
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1

August 14th, 2006.

2

Committee's reference, Madam Chair, a similar

3

communication was sent back on July 18th, 2005,

4

with two specific questions that the Committee

5

under your leadership posed at that time as

6

well.
With that,

7

8

9

And also,

for the

I will answer any questions

the Chair has.
CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay.

Mr. Young, thank you very much

10

for being here with your resource person,

11

Mr. Teruya.
I think what is of critical concern to

12

13

us lS the information regarding to -

let's see,

14

it is in paragraph 3.

"Although

15

the County Code limits the permitted uses within

16

the B-CT districts, you will find many uses

17

specified in the Code are commercial in nature,

18

and their zoning reflects that consideration.

19

As such, the allowed commercial uses permitted

20

for a B-CT zoning affords it the highest and

21

best use classification to be commercial."

It starts out,

And I guess the question really is when

22
23

you have the mixed uses within a single

24

building, how will those uses be assessed?

25

say,

for example, you have commercial on the
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1

bottom floor,

2

on the second floor,

3

and fourth floors,

4

will -- how will the Real Property Tax Division

5

be looking at assessment of these units?

6

Because, of course, the highest and best use for

7

the entire building would be commercial.

8
9

MR. YOUNG:

you know, professional-commercial
and residences on the third

or however it works out.

Yes, Madam Chair.

How

It sounds like you are

getting into specific scenarios, and perhaps

10

Mr. Teruya might be more applicable to answer

11

those specific questions.

12

But with your indulgence,

if I may,

I

13

would like to read a response provided in the

14

July 18th, 2005,

15

goes to some of the issues that you are

16

referring to.

17

CHAIR TAVARES:

18

MR. YOUNG:

response, because I think it

May I, Madam Chair?

Okay.

Yes, please.

Please.

Back in July 18th, 2005, this Committee

19

submitted two questions to the Department of

20

Finance, and I will read them for you.

21

The first question:

How are real

22

property tax rates structured for a single owner

23

of a building consisting of numerous units that

24

are being used for multiple uses,

i.e.,

25

commercial, professional offices,

residential?
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1

And this is specifically pertaining to Country

2

Town Zoning.

3

The response that the Department

4

provided, which is more clarification exactly as

5

provided in the August 14th response, was,

6

"Assuming that the zoning of this parcel is

7

Business Country Town,

8

purposes,

9

This also assumes that the property is not a

for real property tax

it will be classified as commercial.

10

condominium.

Land value will be determined by

11

sales of comparable properties,

12

size and location.

13

assessed as a commercial building based on

14

departmental cost factors.

15

possible multiple uses, Chapter 19, Maui County

16

Code,

17

which falls under the purview of the Planning

18

Department.

19

property occupies one of the units as the

20

residence, the assessment for the land and

21

building will remain the same, commercial;

22

however,

23

for the entire property will be based on the

24

homeowner rate, which at the time of this

25

response was $3.50 per 1,000.

such as zoning,

The building will be

In regards to

regulates and enforces the zoning laws

If the owner of this particular

for tax calculation purposes, the taxes

Practically
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1

speaking, however,

2

commercial property is highly unlikely."

3

The second question was:

such underutilization of a

How are real

4

property tax rates structured for multiple

5

owners of units within a single building that is

6

being used for multiple uses;

7

professional offices or residential?
And the response,

8
9

i.e,

commercial,

"Assuming that the

zoning of this parcel is, again, Business

10

Country Town, but with the exception that each

11

unit is owned by individuals, this property

12

would be considered a condominium,

13

under Section 3.48.305C of Maui County Code.

14

The valuation of the land and building for each

15

individually owned unit will be based on sales

16

of comparable units; however,

17

purposes, the use will be determined by its PITT

18

code.

19

for a home exemption, this unit will be

20

classified as homeowner.

21

transient short-term rental,

22

classified as hotel.

23

long-term rental,

24

apartment.

25

purposes,

thus falling

for classification

So for example, if the owner qualifies

Or if it is used for
it would be

Or if it is rented as a

it would be classified as

Or if it was used for commercial
it would be classified as commercial."
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So I hope this response provides a

1

2

little bit more guidance in terms of your

3

overall question, Madam Chair.

4

CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay.

Yes.

That's very helpful.

5

Members, any questions?

6

Ms. Anderson.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I just want to follow up on that,

8
9

Thank you, Madam Chair.

Mr. Young.

You are saying that the

10

classifications on that example you just gave us

11

would be based on what the use is, but that the

12

assessment -- no, the evaluation of the -- the

13

assessed valuation of the property would be

14

based on the highest and best use; is that

15

correct.

16

MR. YOUNG:

That is correct, Ms. Anderson.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So that brings to mind the

18

example I brought up last time where the lady --

19

she lives on the second floor of a building that

20

the second floor can be either commercial or

21

residential, and up until now, everybody's used

22

it for residential.

23

commercial use -- no,

24

backwards.

25

Her neighbor sold it for
I am sorry.

I got this

Her neighbor sold it for residential and
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1

got way lot more money selling it as a

2

residential unit than office space.

3

her property next door, her unit next door,

4

which she's used as commercial, has now been

5

assessed at a higher rate.

6

paying the higher tax rate, too, because it's

7

commercial.

And so now

Plus she's, I guess,

8

And so that's basically how it works?

9

They are nodding their head with

10

everything I am saylng,

11

way the Code works now.

12

MR. TERUYA:

13

CHAIR TAVARES:

14
15

16
17

so I guess that's the

I think the -Go ahead.

Identify yourself for the

record, please, Mr. Teruya.
MR. TERUYA:

For the record,

Scott Teruya, acting

Real Property Tax Administrator.
I know your example.

I don't know if I

18

could specify which condominium, but in the

19

first two floors,

20

do it for commercial or residence.

21

property that you were talking about,

22

he sold it as a commercial unit.

23

purchased it and transferred it into a

24

residence, yeah.

25

you have the option to either
And the
I believe

The buyer

And I would guess that the property
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1

price that he paid for it was reflective of the

2

market of a condominium unit that was used to be

3

occupied, yeah, and therefore that led to her

4

assessment in being increased.

5

only hers, the entire building.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

7

CHAIR TAVARES:

Right.

Yes.

Okay.

But not

Thank you.

Thank you.

So, Mr. Young or Mr. Teruya, if in this

8

9

Business Country Town zonlng we wanted to have

10

properties assessed at their actual use rather

11

than their highest and best use, what would that

12

entail?

13

MR. TERUYA:

If it's the actual use, it would be for

14

a condominium.

15

that -- the ordinance -- in 3.48.305C, the

16

ordinance refers to condominium units, and

17

that's -- you use it

18

classification would be based on the actual use

19

of the property.

20
21
22

CHAIR TAVARES:

If you condominium property,

Okay.

it would be based -- the

Thank you.

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Oftentimes, and we don't

23

always get into this because we don't always see

24

these particular, I guess, projects again once

25

we give the land use change.

It's usually in
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1

the kuleana of the Planning Commission.

2

a condition,

3

attached that certain density was represented

4

and that the first floors of all of these

5

particular units in a complex were all to be

6

used as commercial businesses.

7

second floors in a particular area were all to

8

be used or stipulated to be used as residences

9

because that's just the way that it's deemed,

let's say,

But if

for example, was

And then the

10

guess, to work in terms of density and traffic

11

generated, everything else.

12

If that is the case,

I

is there some way

13

that you would be able or is there some

14

mechanism to be able to follow up to see whether

15

that is being adhered to or not?

16

representations are made, many times,

17

is what you are going to do, and it's a mixed

18

use, with these densities,

19

difficult for,

20

would be permitted uses,

21

through condition that it can only be used for a

22

certain type of business, and the second floor

23

is only to be used for residences, how do you

24

view that?

25

even focus on when you are evaluating the

Because when
and this

I find it real

then, people -- even though those
if it's stipulated

Or is that not something that you
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properties?
MR. YOUNG:

Well, Ms. Johnson, the -- the issue you

3

raise is a little bit perplexing for Real

4

Property Tax because in terms of the compliance

5

issue, we -- the Division does not have adequate

6

inspectors or compliance officers.

7

don't have any.

8

terms of inspection is relied on Mr. Teruya's

9

staff of appralsers, who are not hired to be

10

In fact, we

Most of the -- anything in

inspectors.
So, again, there's only two aspects of

11

12

assessing value for Real Property Tax Division,

13

one

14

use in that order.

15

and that is zoning and highest and best

So we would have to rely on, in terms of

16

inspector, the enforcement of the zoning law in

17

terms of what is being allowed to operate there.

18

If we were to look at the example, as in

19

my second example,

from the July 2005 response,

20

and relate it to Mr. Teruya's comments about

21

condominiumizing any single particular building

22

with multiple uses in it, that might be one way

23

to get towards the compliance issue because if

24

these are restrictions on use by floors,

25

units, or in some way recorded as deed
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1

restrictions, that might be one way to enforce

2

or in some way have some oversight in terms of

3

what is allowed and usable there.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah, because in some

5

situations,

I know that either we or perhaps the

6

Planning Commission will put in specific

7

conditions that run with the land, but from what

8

you are saying, there's no way that you are able

9

to actually research whether or not those are --

10

those are conditions that are being adhered to

11

or ignored.

12

MR. YOUNG:

Well,

what I would say to make more clear

13

is that the Real Property Tax Division doesn't

14

do that type of enforcement.

15

on the radar or scope of work for the Real

16

Property Tax Division to enforce zoning laws.

17
18
19

So it's not even

Their tasks is only -- is only purely to
review for the issues of real property tax.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

So,

for example, if

20

you had somebody that -- where we specifically

21

prohibited any short-term rentals or vacation

22

rentals, but you know, because of the fact that

23

the people have disclosed what category they are

24

in,

25

you would just say,

irrespective of any land use restrictions,
oh, well, that's a vacation
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1

rental.

2

whatever type of property, and you would

3

classify it and charge the appropriate tax; is

4

that what you are saying?

5

MR. YOUNG:

It's being used as a commercial or

No, because highest and best use means

6

the highest and best legal use.

7

issues with these -- that you mentioned

8

specifically on transient vacation rentals,

9

that's not a permitted zoning use unless they

And in the

10

are actually permitted, then -- then we are

11

taxing them appropriately.

12

or a license or whatever is required to operate,

13

those -- that use is not permitted under highest

14

and best use or applicable zoning.

15

not taxed as a hotel because that's what it

16

should be taxed at, unless they have that

17

permitted use on that parcel.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

But without a permit

So they are

And yet you do base your real

19

property tax assessment based on similar sales;

20

is that correct?

21

MR. YOUNG:

Yes.

That's one of the aspects going

22

into determining assessed value is comparable

23

sales.

24
25

That's correct.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Well, in some

situations, the comparable sales are escalated
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1

to a higher level because of that use of the

2

property, so it's kind of like a dog chasing its

3

tail.

4

And you can't really address that issue,

5

though, because legally,

from what I am hearing,

6

you are saying you may only look at what the

7

legitimate uses are for that property unless,

8

let's say, they had a Special Use Permit, in

9

which case, you would then take a look at that

10

specific property knowing that it did have a

11

Special Use Permit and assess that accordingly?

12

MR. YOUNG:

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

14

CHAIR TAVARES:

15
16

Exactly.

You are correct, Ms. Johnson.
Okay.

All right.

Thank you.

Any further questions on this?

Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

Thank you, Chair.

When we assess the tax rate,

it's going

18

to be based on the PITT codes,

19

utilize best -- best use, which is commercial In

20

the B-CT.

21

ones -- the one that identify if it's a

22

homeowner, considered as a hotel or transient

23

vacation rental.

24
25

MR. YOUNG:

if we are to

So the PITT codes would be the

Correct, Mr. Pontanilla.

Except that it

it's condominiumized -- because in the second
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1

example that I read,

2

assessed as if it's highest and best use, but

3

the tax rate or the applicable PITT Code will be

4

to the actual use.

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

if it -- it will be

When we look at village

6

mixed use, is it similar to Business Country

7

Town in regards to, you know, having business on

8

the first floor and the possibility of

9

residential on the second floor?

10
11

12

MR. YOUNG:

I am sorry.

Neither of us are familiar

with that village mixed use.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

It's something that

13

probably -- yeah, Maui Lani is proposing a

14

village mixed use where you do have -- business

15

on the first floor and residential on the second

16

floor.

17

MR. YOUNG:

Probably, then -- is it my understanding,

18

then, that the only difference would be that

19

this Business Country Town Zoning is specific

20

to, you know, in the rural area or country

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

22

MR. YOUNG:

23
24
25

Yeah.

and village would be In urban

settings?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

That's the way it's being

proposed on one particular project.
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1

MR. YOUNG:

2

CHAIR TAVARES:

3

4

Well, then -If we could have Mr. Alueta explain

this.
MR. ALUETA:

Village mixed use is a specific

5

designation within the Maui Lani Project

6

District.

7

Project District at this time.
So it is sort of like Project Districts

8

9

It's only specific to Maui Lani

create their own zoning and their own

10

basically, their own Title 19 Code.

11

mixed use is one of those designations they have

12

established within that Project District, within

13

that particular Project District.

14

And so yes, you

And village

you are correct in

15

that it's sort of Business Country Town

16

rural mixed-use area that is particular to

17

Title 19 and to the whole County as a wide,

18

whereas the village mixed use is being

19

established in kind of an urban area, specific

20

to Maui Lani only.

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

lS

a

So tax rates should be

22

the -- almost similar to Business Country Town

23

if that's the case?

24
25

MR. YOUNG:

It does sound like, Mr. Pontanilla, it

does sound like give those circumstances that it
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1

would be applied exactly as we are speaking on

2

Business Country Town.

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4
5

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you.

6

Is there anything else on the tax area?

7

Mr. Hokama.

8

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Just so we are clear,

Chairman, and thank you for letting me ask my
question.
Since Mr. Pontanilla, Mr. Director,

11

12

brought up a village mixed use, which is part of

13

a Project District zoning, we still have B-2 and

14

B-3 community business districts, which is,

15

would assume, what A&B is doing at the old

16

Kahului Shopping Center.

17

I

So as we look at the Business Country

18

Town and your explanation of taxation, that

19

would hold consistent in how we are having a

20

like a piggybacking of different zoning

21

categories within the business classification,

22

zoning classification.

23

MR. YOUNG:

Yeah, madam Chair, if I could,

I would

24

like to allow Mr. Teruya to further expound on

25

the impacts or how Project District might affect
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the intricacies of this taxation method.

2

CHAIR TAVARES:

3

MR. YOUNG:

4

MR. TERUYA:

Go ahead.

Madam Chair?
Seems like the village mixed use is

5

similar to a Project District valuation

6

standpoint.

7

like Wailea 670.

8

familiar with that.

Okay.

I will give you an example,
I believe everybody is pretty

Out of the 670 acres,

9

Okay?

I would say 400 is

10

for golf course.

11

a vacant PITT 6 golf course and be taxed at that

12

rate.

13

requirements on what they were going to do for

14

the residential side.

15

was for Residential District, then 50 acres

16

would be based on the PITT 8, Unimproved

17

Residential, so that's kind of how this village

18

mixed use would be applied as well.

19

400 acres would be valued like

I know they have changed their

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So let's say if 50 acres

When you earlier meant

in

20

your response to the Committee Members about

21

condominiumizing, you were talking about an

22

application that went for property regime and

23

got approved, and that's what you were talking

24

to us about condominiumization, right?

25

property regime that has been documented with
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1

the Bureau of Conveyances, so it's unsubdivided

2

interest of a parcel or a -- something of

3

ownership?

4

MR. TERUYA:

Yes.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

You currently do

6

exercise that option on property regimes in the

7

County, Mr. Director?
I mean,

8
9

I was just trying get a sense

is this something you practice within the

10

Division?

Or are we still at the highest and

11

best use application even on those property

12

regimes, whether they be in West Maui, South

13

Maui?

14

MR. YOUNG:

Mr. Teruya and I are trying to recall

15

specific examples, but all condominiumized

16

properties in Maui County is based on actual

17

use.

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I -- I am just asking if you

19

could give us something that we could kind of

20

get our hands around, whether it be by Kahana,

21

or there's someplace in old Kihei area that, you

22

know, makes sense for us to understand this.

23

MR. TERUYA:

Okay.

In the example like Island Surf,

24

that's a condominium -- it is a structure.

25

is a six, seven-story building, and that's
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1

currently condominiumized.

2

primarily is used for commercial use.

3

has its own value based on comparable sales, and

4

the tax rates are based on commercial because

5

it's used for commercial uses.

6

The first floor
Each unit

In the event that they change the use of

7

the actual unit to become a residence, they

8

have -- by ordinance, they have the option to

9

classify what the use is.

10

If they use -- if they live in the unit

11

and they file a homeowner exemption, they would

12

fall in the homeowner category.

13

to rent it, they would fall into the apartment

14

category.

15

rentals is allowed in Island Surf,

16

too sure if anybody would apply for the hotel

17

rate.

18
19

I don't think hotel short-term

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

so I am not

And I will tie it to the

country Town zoning,

20

If they choose

Chair.

But are these -- we are talking about

21

uSlng property regimes -- is there a minimum

22

size requirement to qualify,

23

of land,

24

square feet,

25

feet -- let's say, you know, we got one

or can any parcel

regardless of size, whether it be 5,000
50,000 square feet,

1,000 square
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1

apartment and we have 12 owners of this

2

1,000-square-foot bed

3

minimum requirements of size, Mr. Teruya?

4

MR. TERUYA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

studio.

We have no

Not to my knowledge.
Your job gets -- I appreciate

6

what you do more and more as you explain your

7

difficulties.

8
9
10

Thank you, Chairman.

I am done at this

time.
CHAIR TAVARES:

11

Thank you.

Any further questions on the Real

12

Property Tax end of it?

13

excuse our resource people.

14

If not,

I am going to

Thank you very much for being present

15

with us today and providing some clarification

16

for the Committee.

17

done.

18

up, we will call you.

19

Okay.

So you may -- you guys are

You may leave.

If something else comes

Getting back to our revised

20

draft, Members, that is the last, an

21

August 25th, memo.

22

Corporation Counsel, and you will see that most

23

of the changes that were made are clarification

24

things.

25

things were deleted or added so numbers and

It has come back from

A lot of them are reordering because
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letters changed.

2

I'll point out, on page 2, where most of

3

the work occurred was in further defining what

4

would be the permitted uses within this B-CT

5

Country Town Business District, and under

6

principal uses, there are some changes there.

7

8

On No.1, we added recreational
activities to the amusement park

9

part.

And in No.2, we dropped off from

10

automotive -- descriptions to automotive

11

services because this is defined elsewhere.

12
13

On No.5, added government agencies,
including community centers.

14

And in No.9, we added research to the

15

educational, trade, and personal skills

16

facilities and learning centers.

17

Going further down, No. 19, day care

18

facilities instead of -- I think it was day care

19

centers that was there before.

20

facilities has a definition that can be

21

utilized, so we don't have to explain it again.

22

And also there's an exemption for Molokai.

23

But day care

Then added 20, No. 20, medical

24

facilities and animal hospitals, except on

25

Molokai.
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No. 21, multi-family dwellings,

1

2

duplexes, and bungalow courts, except on

3

Molokai.

4

And No. 22, combinations of dwelling

5

units with other permitted principal uses in the

6

same building, except on Molokai.

7

Is there any questions or comments about

8

that, this section?

9

Mr. Molina.

10
11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, thank you, Madam Chair.

On that last one, the subsection 5, and

12

the combinations of dwelling units with other

13

principal uses in the same building,

14

regards to the term "other uses," I am just

15

wondering if we should better define that

16

particular language because, you know, with the

17

issue of development in our small towns, like I

18

represent two areas that are very vocal when it

19

comes to developing, Makawao and Paia.

20

Any comments from the Planning

just in

21

Department as to maybe strengthening the

22

language or defining it a little bit more under

23

the term of "other uses," or adding to it?

24
25

CHAIR TAVARES:
Mr. Molina,

If I can take a stab at this,
later on in the bill, talks about
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1

the design guidelines for each of those

2

communities.

3

have regarding Paia and Haiku would fall under

4

that section.

5

until we get to that section, we might be able

6

to explain it a little better.

7

And I think the concerns you might

So maybe if you will hold off

But the combination, as reflected In

8

No. 22,

is permitted uses, and that's the things

9

above, that 1 through 21 are the permitted uses.
Members,

10

I would like, at this point,

11

for to us consider removing No.3, auditoriums

12

and theaters,

13

put it under the special uses.

from this -- from this area, and

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

No objections.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Chairman, my community has a

16

theater, part of

17

CHAIR TAVARES:

Well, that's true.

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

19

CHAIR TAVARES:

20

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

-- the Dole Park campus, so ...

Right.
And I would say if it wasn't

21

operating and providing the service to our

22

community, then maybe I would have -- I would

23

take a different look, but I'd just ask the

24

Members, on Lanai,

25

town.

it's part of our country
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1

CHAIR TAVARES:

2

building.

Yeah,

it is, because it is a single

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

4

CHAIR TAVARES:

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6
7

And it

lS

a stand-alone.

Right.
Wouldn't that be

grandfathered?
CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah,

I have no problem with that,

8

because -- leaving it in,

I guess, because the

9

design guidelines will take precedence over the

10

permitted uses.

11

want to envision that one of these country towns

12

will get a,

13

what's at Maui Mall or, you know -- that's not

14

appropriate to me for that thing.

15

And, you know,

you know,

But, yeah,

I

just don't

theater complex in it like

I should take my own advice

16

that I gave to Mr. Molina, wait until we get to

17

the design guidelines section.

18

that I saw that and went "Whoa."

19

that's fine.

20

Okay.

21

this particular area?

22

Okay.

So it's just
But yeah,

Any other -- any discussion on

If we move to the next section,

23

which is special uses, this would be that they

24

have to have approval of the Planning

25

Commission, etc.
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If somebody wants to refresh my memory

1

2

about C that we are taking out, the part we are

3

taking out out of C, which was -- it says,

4

"Light manufacturing such as leather crafting

5

and sewing, provided that the light

6

manufacturing is primarily associated with a

7

permitted use under this section."

8

deleted was the making of ice cream, which is

9

kind of an awkward kind of phrase.

And what was

But would you, Planning Department,

10
11

would you see a problem with a business that

12

wanted to come in that, you know, sold Icee's,

13

and frozen custard, and the Dairy Queen type of

14

operation in this district?

15

already existing as a permitted use under

16

Section A, principal uses?

17

18

MR. ALUETA:

Yeah,

Would that be

I guess, Madam Chair, in looking

at it, eating and drinking establishments

19

CHAIR TAVARES:

20

MR. ALUETA:

21

CHAIR TAVARES:

That would fall under there?

Yes.
Okay.

So that's probably why we took

22

it out of this part.

Besides, it's a very

23

awkward description of things,

24

ice cream."

25

guri-guri.

"the making of

That means we couldn't do
That would be kind of sad.
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Okay.

1

Any questions about these uses?

2

And just a clarification, that we added on the

3

storage facilities not associated with a

4

permitted use would require a Special Use

5

Permit, that number -- letter F at the bottom.

6

Okay.

Under development standards,

just

7

chatting during the break, I

8

opportunity to have a small -- limited

9

discussion with Chair Hokama regarding parking

am happy I had the

10

requirements.

11

that

that I think would help in describe

12

this

whether it is a Business Country Town or

13

village/mixed use type of thing.

14

And he's working on a bill

We could add something like that here

15

regarding parking, or it could be under the

16

design guidelines portion of the bill.

17

will have him -- his office complete that work

18

and send it over to us.

I

19

this out today, Members,

just to continue the

20

discussion.

21

But I

don't intend to pass

So on the development standards, there's

22

nothing major in there.

23

back to the maximum height being two stories,

24

not to exceed 35 feet.

25

We did revert our thing

And then we have limited conditional
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1

uses on page 4, and there were just some minor

2

corrections in there.

3

guidelines section, 060, on page 4 ...

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

CHAIR TAVARES:

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

7

CHAIR TAVARES:

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

quick.

I

Oh,

Now, in the design

Excuse me, Madam Chair.

I am sorry.
Yeah.

Ms. Anderson.
You skipped past that real

just want clarification that any of

10

these limited conditional uses would take a

11

requirement of the Council, approval of the

12

Council; is that correct?

13
14

CHAIR TAVARES:

I believe it does conditional use

permits.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

16

CHAIR TAVARES:

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

MR. ALUETA:

19
20

Mr. Foley, can you verify that?
-- conditional permits.

Yeah, conditional permits are I believe

19.40, require Council approval.
CHAIR TAVARES:

21

So it requires Council approval.

Does that answer your question,

22

Ms. Anderson?

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24

MR. ALUETA:

25

Chapter 19 --

Section B,

Yeah, because -right after that,

says

am sorry
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1

CHAIR TAVARES:

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

MR. ALUETA:

says Conditional Permit.

4

CHAIR TAVARES:

Chapter 19.40.

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

You are on a roll.

7

CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah.
Right.

Okay.

I won't stop you.

No, no, that's okay.

Feel free to

8

stop.

9

stuff before, it's not -- just wanted to hit the

10

Because we have gone over some of this

highlights of this.

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

CHAIR TAVARES:

Right.

In the design guidelines section,

13

then, in 060, this is where me -- where we may

14

want to put in reference to the parking,

15

specifics for parking in a Business Country Town

16

zoned area.

17

belongs when we get that proposal.

So we can discuss where it best

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Madam Chair.

19

CHAIR TAVARES:

20

I forget.

21

paragraph, should that be approved by the

22

commissions or just commission?

23

Planning Commission?

24

say Planning Commission?

25

Planning Commissions," or something like that?

And I'm not -- one more thing before
On the last sentence of the first

And do we mean

And if we do, should we
"To the respective
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Maybe that's more a question for Mr. Giroux.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Is that the urban review

design, Ms. Chair?
CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah, the last sentence in the first

5

paragraph in page 4, 060, design guidelines.

6

The last sentence reads,

7

shall be in conformance with the established

8

design guidelines for each community as approved

9

by the commission."

10
11

12
13

14
15
16
17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

"The urban design theme

And that is the Planning

Commission.
CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah, it should be the Planning

Commission, and maybe we should say that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And -- Madam -- I have a

related question to this, Madam Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES:

Sure.

Okay.

Go ahead while he looks

this up.

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

CHAIR TAVARES:

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah.

Thank you.
And I am sorry that I don't

21

remember, but -- and I think either I wrote this

22

question to ask, or I already asked it and I

23

can't remember the answer.

24

But do we have design guidelines

25

currently adopted for all of our community plan
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regions?

2

CHAIR TAVARES:

3

MR. ALUETA:

Mr. Alueta.

No, but we do have them for the regions

4

that have established Business Country Town

5

districts such as Hana, Makawao, Pukalani, Kula,

6

Paia, Haiku, the entire island of Molokai, as

7

well as Lanai.

8

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So all the small towns have

them?

10

CHAIR TAVARES:

And Wailuku.

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

CHAIR TAVARES:

13

MR. ALUETA:

And Wailuku does?

It's a separate one.

Well, it's -- Wailuku is separate in the

14

sense it's a redevelopment,

15

own design.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

17

MR. ALUETA:

and so it has its

Right.

I think in -- in this area,

I am not

18

sure if it was in Lanai's discussion that I

19

think In this section, they wanted to not

20

leave it so vague, but say -- make specific

21

reference to the Lanai design guidelines or

22

the -- you know, Molokai design guidelines to

23

have that actually referenced in here in

24

Title 19, rather than just as approved

25

think they felt that "the established design
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1

guidelines for each community" was a little

2

vague to them, and they felt they wanted to have

3

the specific language or the specific title of

4

their design guidelines referenced in the -- in

5

the ordinance.

6
7
8

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

Thank you, Madam

Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay.

I think that might be a

good thing to do, Mr. Alueta

a
is

- excuse me

10

to have all of the ones that have been reviewed

11

and approved by the respective commissions

12

actually listed here, and then as new ones get

13

approved, we amend this ordinance to include

14

them.

15

So we will work with Mr. Giroux on that.

Might make it clearer for folks.

16

Ms. Anderson -- I am sorry.

17

Ms. Johnson, and then Ms. Anderson.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

and this is

With regard to

19

just in the section above regarding the side

20

yard setbacks and the rear yard setbacks,

21

because I am noticing that hotels,

22

are ten feet,

23

we would put ten feet?

Because,

24

relatively small area.

I could understand in a

25

residential area, but -- if you have a small,

for example,

is there any specific reason why
I mean, it's a
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1

little hotel complex or something sitting next

2

to a commercial,

3

if it's sitting next to, perhaps, another

4

residence, you know,

5

residence is near the hotel,

6

building in conflicts by making it such a small

7

setback?

8
9

CHAIR TAVARES:

I could understand that.

But

something where maybe the
is

are we

I think -- well, my oplnlon is if

it's a conditional use,

then when it comes to

10

us, we will be looking at what is it next to,

11

and if that makes sense, and we could change

12

that to whatever we felt was appropriate as far

13

as, you know,

14

about the side yard setbacks, only, you know,

15

ten feet next to a hotel might not be wise for

16

that particular area.

17

like -- I know what you are saying

But I think it has to be almost a site

18

specific and, you know,

19

that's why it's listed I think under the

20

conditional use,

21

a specific plan.

And

so it gets more review.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Well-- well, then,

if that is

22

the case, then maybe what I would rather see in

23

there is just say,

24

would say a minimum of ten feet, because it

25

could be more;

instead of saying ten feet,

is that correct?

And that would
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1

be in 19.15.050, 1, it's A, B, and then just say

2

a minimum, or is that stated?

3

CHAIR TAVARES:

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

5

No,

it's not stated anywhere.
No,

it's not stated.

So, to me, personally,

I would rather

6

see just a minimum, giving us that flexibility

7

or whoever is looking at it, to say that it may

8

be a greater setback that's required.

9
10
11

CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay.

We can

we can consider that

part.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I

just -- my personal

12

opinion.

13

fences are not going to be enough, and

14

particularly if it is a two-story dwelling next

15

door, and the residence lS on top.

16

Because I know that sometimes the

CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you.

Yeah, we will look at all those, A,

17

B -- A through D, and look at whether it's

18

appropriate to put "a minimum of" in the

19

description.
Ms. Anderson.

20
21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you,

Chair.

I would concur with Councilmember

22
23

Johnson because, you know,

if it's read, you

24

know, as it's stated right now,

25

mean,

it doesn't

I guess we could make a condition, but
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1

those are the setback standards.

2

like it also to say provided that

3

minimum of the -

4

with the language.

5

lost it.

6

standards of development are followed.

7

So I would
that a

well, you will have to play
I had it for a minute and I

That a minimum of the additional
Anyway.

So that gives us flexibility and so that

8

the applicant knows that this is only a minimum

9

that, maybe the Council might want to make it

10

greater.
And you know,

11

In regards to hotels, we

12

have a limit on the -- we are supposed to have a

13

limit on expanding visitor industry facilities,

14

so I don't know that we want to have hotels

15

popping up in all of our small towns, so I am

16

happy to see this still being conditional.

17

But back to what was just said

18

originally, and now I forget what my line of

19

thought.

20

guidelines -- thank you.

21

Mr. Alueta was explaining design

What design guidelines have yet to be

22

developed?

23

expect one for Waihee?

24

do you know -- that you know we need to do?

25

CHAIR TAVARES:

What categories or -- I mean, can we
I mean, what is missing,

Haiku is not done.

Haiku is not
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done.

2

MR. ALUETA:

3

CHAIR TAVARES:

4

MR. ALUETA:

5

CHAIR TAVARES:

6

MR. ALUETA:

7

It's Paia-Haiku.

Oh, Paia-Haiku?

It is Paia-Haiku.
Sorry.

So it has references to like Pauwela

area and all that.
And as far as design guidelines,

8
9

It's Paia.

not aware of that.

I am

We are currently not working

10

on any design guidelines.

I don't think there

11

are any that we are mlsslng.
I think if anything, we would be -- the

12

13

Commission or the Department would be updating

14

the existing ones, but we are not creating any

15

new ones because they come out as part of the

16

General Plan and the community plans, and so

17

if -- if the -

18

community plan they establish or designate an

19

area outside of our normal areas that have

20

Business Country Town, then we would then

21

develop the design guidelines.

22

anticipating that at this time.

23
24
25

in the new update of the general

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

But I am not

So we do have currently for

Paia and Haiku?
MR. ALUETA:

Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So everybody is covered

right now?
MR. ALUETA:

Everybody lS covered right now, and

4

that -- again, that's a result of when they went

5

ahead and designated certain areas within the

6

community plan maps zoning -- designation maps,

7

we went back and established these or created

8

these design guidelines as part of the

9

implementation part of the community plan.

10

so again, once again,

11

have completed that part.

12

And

if there's -- and so we

And so in this next round of General

13

Plan and community plan updates,

14

pop up outside of those regions that we are not

15

covered, then we would go back, and,

16

our implementation of that plan, we would then

17

create those or establish those design

18

guidelines.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

if new areas

as part of

So then these design

20

guidelines, they apply across the board wherever

21

they are referenced in the Zoning Code,

22

I mean, they could -- they are not just attached

23

to Business Country Town Zoning?

24

MR. ALUETA:

They are.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

They are.
They are.
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It's only -- it only makes reference

2

to -- it's only properties that are -- that are

3

zoned Business Country Town are subject to the

4

design guidelines.

5
6

7

If it's zoned B-1 or B-2, we would
not -- we would not use the design guidelines.
So this zonlng category of 19.510 of the

8

Business Country Town, if you zone it that, the

9

property is designated that on the zoning map,

10

and when they come in for development, we would

11

then look at that Business Country Town design

12

guideline booklet and see whether or not your

13

proposed development matches up with it,

14

including signs, including, you know,

15

fenestrations and whatnot.

16

And some design guideline booklets are

17

better than others.

You know, Molokai has a --

18

has a pretty good one.

19

the design guidelines for the various towns from

20

Maunaloa to Kaunakakai to, you know, Kualapuu.

21

So each -- each, they have broken it down.

Break -- it breaks down

22

Lanai is also a very good one.

23

deals more island-wide because they have a lot

24

of area that is designated Business Country Town

25

District.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So -- so it doesn't apply to

neighborhood business districts?

3

MR. ALUETA:

B-1, neighborhood, no, does not.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

And

lS

there any

5

reason why -- or maybe let me ask it this way,

6

Madam Chair, if Mr. Alueta can just give me a

7

brief -- putting you on the spot here, Joe

8

brief comparison of the difference between

9

Business Country Town and neighborhood business,

a

10

because it seems to me like that's a category

11

that we might be able to apply this mixed use in

12

too.

13

And -- and I guess I don't know if I am

14

anticipating a concern that I shouldn't have to

15

worry about, but, you know, the whole impetus of

16

this Business Country Town was to address

17

specifically the needs of our small towns.

18

we know that we have got a lot of new

19

development coming on line where people are

20

going to be developing mixed uses, or quasi

21

country town villages or whatever, that aren't,

22

you know, in any small town.

23

right in the middle of Kahului.

24
25

And so I

And

They could be

just want to make sure that we

are not taking something that was designed for a
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1

small town and applying it into a larger urban

2

area just so that they can have mixed use when

3

maybe the Neighborhood Business District or one

4

of these other business districts would be a

5

more appropriate place or a zoning for them to

6

have if we could include a mechanism for

7

apartments, condominiums, dwelling units.
Because it seems like that's -- that's

8

9
10
11

really what we are trying to get at here is the
ability to mix living units with commercial.
MR. ALUETA:

Correct.

Without doing a side-by-side

12

analysis,

I would say that you have that option

13

with,

14

apartments were listed as -- as a permitted use,

15

and so allowing for that type of mixture.

like, the B-2 district,

16

I

mean,

I

in which

think that your best option is

17

not to designate an area in Kahului or Maui Lani

18

as B-CT but to revamp the B-1, B-2 or B-3

19

districts to acknowledge or allow for more of a

20

mixed uses.

21

intent.

22

I

think that's -- and that's the

The intent of the B-CT is not only the

23

mixture of uses, which is what this is

24

establishing, but I

25

for the B-CT is the design characteristics as

think the primary impetus
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1

indicated in, you know -- by the urban design

2

I mean, by the design guidelines.

3

just about allowing apartments above residential

4

or above commercial.

5

divided-light windows, using

6

(inaudible) --

7
8

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

It is not

It is about using true
having

Using those design

guidelines.
MR. ALUETA:

and using double hung windows and

10

uSlng -- having appropriate architectural

11

fenestrations,

12

corrugated metal instead of Monier tile, you

13

know, per se.

14

that we associate with our small towns and that

15

is trying to be preserved.

you know, using totong roof or

It's just that's the character

This ordinance right now, the amendments

16

17

are more toward allowing a mixture of uses but

18

also maintaining the character.

19

that's -- I think that's what the intent of this

20

amendment is,

21

use -- mixed uses.

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And I think

just to allow for more mixture

And so why is -- is B-1

23

neighborhood -- what is it, Neighborhood

24

Business District, is that not being used

25

anymore?

Has that just like lost its function
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now that we have B-CT?
MR. ALUETA:

Yeah, yeah -- I think it's more in -- it

3

allows for these neighborhood uses, but more in

4

the urban core,

5

the Ace Hardware, where they saw they wanted to

6

have an urban-type use.

7

it's not a country-type use.

8

have an urban business use; however, they wanted

9

it to be more applicable to the surrounding

such as possibly as you saw with

They don't have -- but
They wanted to

10

areas and so that's why the language used in the

11

community plan said we wanted it to be a B-1

12

type use.
So there is those areas that are --

13
14

where it is applicable today.

15

mean, but as indicated, you know, my main job is

16

supposed to have been to revise the whole

17

Title 19, and this whole

18

think as part of that whole update project, you

19

are going to see us trying to update the County

20

Code, which is, you know, going on 30, almost 35

21

years,

22

these sections of the Code that were

23

established, you know,

24

to be refreshed.

25

I

think,

in age.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I

think -- I

and 19.510, and I

And so there are still

30,

Well,

35 years ago and need

let me ask you this,
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Mr. A1ueta.

2

Just one more question, Madam Chair.

3

Is -- is

let's just take an example

4

of the Ace Hardware store, where they want to --

5

in Kihei, where they wanted to have the option

6

of using business, but they didn't want it to

7

be, you know,

8

Would it -

9

mean,

a big urban-type center, but B-1.

and I can see that happening.

I

In what they are doing in Kahului, and

10

with some of these new towns that may be

11

sprlnglng up, that are not established as a

12

small town yet, that maybe we should be looking

13

at allowing the same kind of residential mixed

14

use in B-1, Neighborhood Business District, so

15

that that could be used.

16

Because you just said, B-CT wouldn't be

17

appropriate in Kihei, but B-1, Neighborhood

18

Business District, would.

19

giving them the same residential.

20

But yet, we are not

And then maybe we could also tie in

21

design guidelines to the Neighborhood Business

22

District.

23

MR. ALUETA:

On your first part,

I agree with you

24

100 percent.

B-1 needs to be amend -- should be

25

or looked at being amended to allow for mixed
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1

uses,

such as apartment uses, within that area.

2

We agree with you on that.
As to whether or not you want to -- they

3

4

should have design guidelines,

5

then -- then just name them BC-T, and we will

6

create a new design guideline for those regions.

7

I mean, that's -- that's your other option.

8
9

if they do,

It has been talked about.

It is more -

it is more difficult to establish a design

10

guideline for urban core areas such as Kihei,

11

and Kahului -- Kahului, because they are -- you

12

know, they are the new city developments,

13

and they have a -- it's just a little more

14

difficult to try to go in and establish some

15

type of style when you don't know what the style

16

is.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

MR. ALUETA:

Okay.

and

Right.

It's easy when you have a -- an

19

existing circumstances where you had towns

20

established and create their own style prior to

21

the County Code even being in existence.

22

prior to the County even being formed,

23

created their own style of that -- plantation

24

style, and so it's

25

go in and say this is what the style is, and

Or

they

it was a little easier to
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everyone agreed, and it was no problem.

2

I think in Kahului area and in Kihei

3

area, you are going to have a little more

4

trouble.

5

I think in Wailuku, Wailuku lS kind of a

6

model because you have that -- with the

7

redevelopment area, you are trying to establish

8

both a certain style that's reflected in the

9

design guideline, but it kind of has a mixture

10

of both modern and plantation.

11

that's very unique.

12

Wailuku Redevelopment Area -- I mean, and it's

13

also a model as far as the small town code that

14

it established because it allows a large amount

15

of mixed uses.

16

going, you know, of multiple stories, and I

17

think it's

18

unique,

19

gOlng to -- is just beginning to start to take

20

off.

21

And I think

And I think the -- this

It allows for the bonuses of

it's -- you know, Wailuku is very

and I think that redevelopment area is

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I understand what you are

22

saying.

23

to get design guidelines for somebody like Kihei

24

that's so spread out.

25

It would probably be nearly impossible

But if someone was coming to you folks,
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1

the Planning Department, and wanted to do a

2

mixed use business center and a new plan

3

development area that may not be a Project

4

District or someplace that's already

5

established, like Kihei or -- or someplace that

6

doesn't have our Business Country Town design

7

guidelines to fall under, what would you tell

8

them to get?

9

get?

10

MR. ALUETA:

What zoning would you tell them to

As -- as the classic example is Ace

11

Hardware and what they are trying to do is do

12

B-2, right, which allows for the apartments as

13

well as other uses that they -- they felt

14

appropriate, and limiting -- and having a very

15

strict conditional zoning, meaning they are

16

they are saying it's B-2, and it's limited.

17

Their zoning is apartment, allows

18

apartment and I think one or two other uses that

19

are established within the B-2 district, and

20

then limiting all the rest of the uses to those

21

in the B-1 district.

22

So essentially, you are -- essentially,

23

it's a B-1 zoning with apartments.

That's what

24

they have done because you don't -- because the

25

apartments are not listed in B-1.

They had to
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1

go with B-2.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

But what if we don't want to

3

give them -- you know, you give somebody zoning

4

and they can do whatever they want with it

5

afterwards.

6

MR. ALUETA:

They can change ownership.

Not if you condition -- not if you have

7

conditioned it.

8

conditional zoning,

9

That's it.

10

If you got to give it a

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

it's conditional zoning.

Well, mean,

I know but what

11

if it is a permitted use and it's not

12

conditional to that.

13

MR. ALUETA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

You know what I am saying?

Right.
So they come in and say they

15

want to do offices and we give them B-2 with

16

some apartments on top, and then they sell it to

17

somebody else before they develop it, or even

18

after they develop it, they sell it to somebody

19

else.

20

want offices.

21

whatever under these other permitted uses are.

22
23
24
25

And that person says, you know,

I
MR. ALUETA:

I don't

I want to have bathhouses or

just

it just popped out at me.

If I may, Madam Chair, you run the risk

with every zonlng change that you
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

you get.

Yeah, but I mean, that's why
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1

I like this B-1 neighborhood because the

2

permitted uses are more narrowly defined and

3

more conducive to a neighborhood.

4

So I am thinking, Madam Chair, that this

5

same kind of apartment/residential mixed use

6

should be something that we should look at for

7

the neighborhood, B-1 business district.

8

then that way, the uses are more narrowly

9

defined, and I think, when you look at them,

10

much more compatible with residential living

11

than all these uses we have under B-2 and B-3.

12

CHAIR TAVARES:

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

CHAIR TAVARES:

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And

Yes, exactly.
Thank you.

Mr. Hokama.
Chairman,

just -- just as a

16

information,

I think the Department is correct.

17

You know, conditional zoning can limit the

18

permitted uses by Council action, as well as,

19

believe, through our communication we have a

20

draft ordinance to eliminate stacking, which

21

would then take care of some of the concerns

22

Ms. Anderson has regarding apartments in a

23

business district and so forth.

24

that the Council can -- can look at through

25

through the vehicle we have in Committee to

I

It's something
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1

eliminate under industrial as well as business

2

zone areas.

3

CHAIR TAVARES:

Right.

4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And that's another way to

5

address the concerns, to maintain a specific

6

feeling or design quality that certain regions

7

might want to retain, Chair.

8

that that's another way to address.

9

So I

just share

But I think Country Town Zoning is

10

basically to help maintain those currently in

11

existence, and to maintain the architectural

12

style, the flavor, the ambiance that, you know,

13

for each of our unique small communities --

14

Lanai

15

there's only one Dole Park with the pine trees

16

and everything surrounding, in our County, and

17

we have addressed it through our design

18

guidelines.

19

- you know, there's only one Lanai City,

And I would just say that, again, under

20

19.15.060, Chair, that, you know, Lanai has

21

expressed a need to have this Committee consider

22

whether or not we want to codify the guidelines

23

so that there's no issue whether or not a rule

24

adopted by the Planning Commission has any

25

standing over an ordinance regarding parking or
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1

some other issue that may come up regarding a

2

rule versus a law.
And I

3

just bring that up because we have

4

had some applications that have gone before the

5

Board of Variance and they have stuck to the

6

Code.

7

Corporation Counsel has advised them so, but it

8

doesn't fit if you look at our design

9

guidelines, which is adopted by rule.

10

And I don't know whether or not

So I

just share that concern that Lanai

11

has expressed, and I am very supportive of

12

maintaining the integrity of the design

13

guidelines for each unique County community.

14
15

Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Any other points on this or page 5 and

16
17

6?

18

how some of these projects grow because all I

19

had wanted to do with this was to add and make

20

it clear that residential was permitted in a

21

mixed use building, and we ended up with looking

22

at other areas, which is good,

23

time, you know, we have made it better.

24
25

There wasn't anything,

really.

It's amazing

and I think each

And before we all freeze in this
building, in this room,

if

does anyone have a
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burning question that could heat us up, here?

2

VICE-CHAIR MATEO:

3

CHAIR TAVARES:

4

VICE-CHAIR MATEO:

Chairman.

Mr. Mateo.
I don't have a burning question,

5

but I have a really -- I would like to share a

6

brief observation on one particular item

7

especially, and that's 19.15.040D.

8

really glad to see that this revised bill

9

reverted back to two stories and got rid of

And I am

10

that -- that other three stories that was on the

11

original -- on another copy of the ordinance.

12

And I think that lS,

for my interest and

13

my concern, it was -- it was an issue for the

14

Molokai Planning Commission that caused a lot of

15

discussion at that particular point.

16

real happy to see at this particular point that

17

in fact it had reverted back to two stories.

18

CHAIR TAVARES:

All right.

Thank you.

So I am

And I think

19

the only reason it went to the three stories was

20

about a definition for a loft.

21

know, you can fit it within that two-story

22

thing,

23

be there, because it is still 35 feet.

24

hasn't changed.

25

fine.

And so now, you

It will be -- your loft will just

Okay.

So any other discussion?
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Members, we will await the proposal

1

2

regarding the parking requirements or parking

3

standards for this,

4

Corporation Counsel and Chair Hokama's office to

5

see where appropriately we should fit it in.

and we will work with

And also, we will be discussing the

6
7

"minimum of" on the setbacks, and also changing

8

the wording about the appropriate Planning

9

Commissions.
I -- that's all that I caught from our

10

11

discussions.

12

Members,

13

and we will get it as part of discussion.

14
15
16

If you think of anything else,

just shoot me an e-mail or something,

Mr. Giroux,
MR. GIROUX:

comments, please.

Chair, did you want me to address the

definition of "commission"?

17

CHAIR TAVARES:

18

MR. GIROUX:

We

Yes.
we did look into,

it's

19

commission is defined in Title 19 as the

20

appropriate commission

21

for the County, so ...

22
23

CHAIR TAVARES:

Oh, okay.

- Planning Commissions

So we don't need to do

that, then.

24

MR. GIROUX:

That's been covered.

25

CHAIR TAVARES:

All right.

It's already covered.
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Did you all get that, Members?

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

3

CHAIR TAVARES:

Yes.

So on that 060 section, we can just

4

leave it as is, Slnce it is one of the --

5

"commission" is defined in the chapter.

6

So we will look at that other one, the

7

minimum for the 050, limited conditional uses,

8

the minimum setbacks and that kind of thing.

9

10
11

And I think we are almost ready to go
with this.

Getting there.

All right.

Okay.

Members, if there is nothing

12

else, I would ask for deferral of this item,

13

with no objections.

14

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.

15

CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay.

This item is deferred.

16
17

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

18
19

CHAIR TAVARES:

We will get back to it as soon as we

20

can get the -- the parking proposal in.

21

have a comment about parking in general that I

22

think we should be taking a look at the whole

23

parking ordinance because as you and I and the

24

rest of the public know out there, no one uses

25

compact stalls the way they were designed to be
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1

used, and people think that the lines on the

2

parking lot mean that's where you line up the

3

emblem on your hood,

4

And it's -- and it's very irritating to see that

5

happen.

6

lS

on one of those lines.

And what does happen in most places is

7

that the compact cars use the regular stalls

8

because there's more room in them.

9

we should just do away with this compact stall

10
11

So I think

business.
And perhaps we need to review or revise

12

that parking ordinance in such a way that we are

13

looking at our modern -- modern or more recent

14

philosophies of looking at less traffic on the

15

road by encouraging people to use transit, by

16

car pooling, other means.

17

parking lots, people are going to use them.

18

start making it more difficult to park, it will

19

make people get together and do other

20

alternative things.

21

And we keep paving
We

So I would ask that we keep that in the

22

back of our minds somewhere.

I don't know who

23

will get to it in what -- I don't think

not

24

in this term, but at some point in time,

I think

25

that needs a revision.
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If not, thank you very much, and this
meeting lS adjourned.

ADJOURN:

(Gavel.)

4:07 p.m.
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